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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

TDD Access: Retay NH
1-800-735-2964

COMMISSIONER
Jared 5. Chicoine

Tel. (603) 271-3670
DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

Christopher J. Ellms, Jr. FAX No. 271-1526

Website:

DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY www.gnergy.nh.gov

21 S. Fruit St., Suite 10
Concord, N.H. 03301-2429

July 13, 2022
His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House
Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

1) Authorize the New Hampshire Department of Energy (NH DOE) to enter into a SOLE SOURCE
contract with Southwestern Community Services, Inc. (VC #177511), Keene, NH, in the amount of $245,376
for the federal Weatherization Assistance Program (WAP) effective upon approval of Governor and
Executive Council approval, through June 30, 2023. 100% Federal Funds.

Funds to support this request are anticipated to be available in the following account in FY 2023 upon
availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budget.

NH Department of Energy. Low Income Weatherization FY 2023
02-52-52-520010-33560000-074-500587 Grants for Pub Assist & Relief $245376

" 2) Further request authorization to advance to the vendor $ 31,765 of the above-referenced contract amount.

EXPLANATION

This contract is SOLE SOURCE because of U.S. Department of Energy’s (USDOE) grant guidance

(10 CFR 440.15) giving Community Action Agencies preferred status for the Weatherization Assistance
Program due to their non-profit status, their role providing a range of services to clients eligible for the
Weatherization Assistance Program (WAP), and their historical performance delivering the weatherization
program.

NH DOE is responsible for administering New Hampshire’s statewide Weatherization Assistance Program,
funded by a grant from USDOE. The objective of the program is to weatherize homes to reduce energy
consumption and energy costs in eligible low income households. Priority is given to households that
include people who are elderly, disabled, or children, and households with high energy usage. NH DOE
contracts with New Hampshire’s Community Action Agencies to provide weatherization services at the local
level. NH DOE estimates that the USDOE’s WAP-grant award to New Hampshire will contribute to the
weatherization of approximately one hundred and thirty-six (136} homes in the State.
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His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

July 13,2022
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The requested advance of funds will enable Southwestern Community Services, Inc. to operate the program
between monthly reimbursements from the State, and may only be used for allowable program expenses as

detailed in Exhibit C.

In the event Federal Funds are no longer available, General Funds will not be requested to support this
contract.

Respectfully submitted,

Jared Chicoine
Commissioner

Attachments



FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 12/11/2019)

Notice: This agreement and all of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval, Any information thas is private, confidential or proprietary must
boclemiyidmﬁﬁedmmengmcyandagmedtohwril.ingpriortosimingtheconm

AGREEMENT
The State of New Hampshire and the Coatractor bereby mutusity agree as follows:
GENERAL PROVISIONS
1. IDENTIFICATION.
1.1 State Agency Name 12 Siate Agency Address
New Hampshire Department of Energy 21 S. Fruit Street, Suite {0
Concord, New Hampshire 03301
1.3 Contractor Name 1.4 Contractor Address
Southwestern Conmmumity Services, Inc. 63 Community Way
PO Box 603
. . - Keene, NH 03431
1.5 Contractor Phone 1.6 Account Number 1.7 Complction Date 1.3 Price Limitation
Number ' 02-52-52-520010-33560000- | June 30, 2023 -$245,376.00
{603)352-7512 074-500587 :

1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency
Kirk Stone, Weatherization Program Manager

1.10 State Agency Telephone Number
(603) 271-3670

111 Coutractor Signature

Beth Aariela

1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

Dt O'T/Illlad Beth Daniels, CEOQ

.13 Agen

~

1.14 Neme and Title of State Agency Signatory
Jared Chicoine, Commissioaer

I }/ Approval by the N.H. Department of Administration, Division of Personnel (if applicable)

By: " Director, On:
1.16 Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution) (if applicabie}
By: . ' on: 7/15/2022
L17 Approval by the Governor and Executive Council (if applicable)
G&C Item number: G&C Meeting Date:
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2. SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED. The State of New
Hampshire, acting through the agency identified in block 1.1
("State”), ‘engages contractor identified in block 1.3
(“Contractor”) to perform, and the Contractor shail perform, the
work or sale of goods, or both, identified and more particularly
described in the attached EXHIBIT B which is incorporated
herein by reference (“Services™).

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.

3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement tg the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if applicable,
this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall

become effective on the date the Governor and Executive ‘

Council approve this Agreement as indicated in block 1.17,
unless no such approval is required, in which case the Agreement
shall become effective on the date the Agreement is signed by
the State: Agenicy as shown in block 1.13 (“Effective Date”).

3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Coiitractor prior to
the Effective. Date shall be performed at the-sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not become
cffective, the State shall have no liability to the Contractor,
including without limitation, any obligation to pay the
Contractor for any costs incurred or Servicés performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation of
funds affected by any state or federal legislative or executive
action that reduces, eliminates or otherwise modifies the
appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and
 the Scope for Services provided in EXHIBIT B, in whole or in
part. In no event shall the State be liable for any payments
hereunder in excess of such available appropriated funds. In the
event of a reduction or termination of appropriated funds, the

State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds.

become available, if ever, and shall have the right to reduce or
terminate the Services under this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such réduction or termination.
The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other
account or source to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the
event funds in that Account are reduced or unavaitable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT. .

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of payment
are identified and more particularly described in EXHIBIT C
which is incorporated herein by reference. .

5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the compléte reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
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compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State shall
have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract price.

3.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement those
liquidated amounts required or permifted by N.H. RSA 80:7

- through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.

5.4 Notwithstanding any provision. in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in no
event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually made
hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block ] 8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY. ,

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all applicable statutes, laws,
regulations, and orders of federal, state, county or municipal
authorities which impose any obligation ‘or duty upon the
Contractor, including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal
employment opportunity laws. In addition, if this Agreement is
funded in any part by monies of the United States, the Contractor
shall comply with all federal executive orders, rules, regulations
and statutes, and with any rules, regulations and guidelines as the
State or the United Statés issue to implement these regulations.
The Contractor shall also comply with all applicable intellectual
property laws, :

6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall not
discriminate against employees or applicanis for employment
because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex, handicap. sexual
orientation, or national origin and will take affirmative action to
prevent such discrimination. _

6.3. The Contractor agrees to permit the State or United States
access to any of the Contractor’s books, records and accounts for
the purpose of ascertaining compliance with ail rules, regulations
and orders, and the covenants, terms and conditions of this

Agreement,

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all personne]
necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor wartants that
all personnel engaged in the Services shall be qualified 10
perform the Services, and shafl be properly - licensed and
otherwise authorized to do so under ail applicable laws. ’

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the

- Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire, and

shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to’
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State employee
or official, who is materially involved in the procurement,
administration or performance of this Agreement. This
provision shall survive termination of this Agreement.

1.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or her
successor, shall be the State’s representative. In the event of any
dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement, the
Contracting Officer's decision shall be final for the State.
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8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.,
8:1 Any .one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor sha]l constitute an event of default hereunder (“Event
of Default”):
8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;
8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder: and/ar
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition of
this Agreement. T - -
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State may
take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written nétice specifying the Event of
Defauit and requiring it to be remédied within, in the absence of
A greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30) days from the
date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is not timely cured,
terminate this Agreement, effective two (2) days after giving the
Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and suspending ali payments to be made under this
. Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
~ period from the date of such notice unitil siich time as the State
determines that the Contractor hds cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor;
8.2.3 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and set off against any other obligations the State ray
owe to the Condtractor any damages the State suffers by reason of
- any Event of Défault; and/or
8.2.4 givé the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default, treat the Agreement as breached, terminate the
Agreement and pursue any of its remedies at law or in equity, or
both.
8.3. No failure by the State to enforce any provisions hereof after
any Event.of Defsult shall be deemed a waiver of its rights with
regard to that Event of Default, .or any subsequent Event of
Default. No express failure to enforce any Event of Default shal}
be deemed a waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and
all of the provisions hereof: upon any further or other Event of
Default on'the part of the Contractor.

9. TERMINATION.

9.1 Notwithstanding paragraph 8, the State may, at its sole
discretion, terminate the Agreement for any reason, in whole or
in part, by thirty (30) days written notice to the Contractor that
the State is exercising its option to terminate the Agreement.
9.2 In the event of an early termination of this Agreement for
any reason other than the completion of the Services, the
Contractor shall, at the. State’s discretion, deliver to the
Contracting Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date
of termination, a report (“Termination Report”) describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject matter,
content, and number of copies of the Termination Report shall
be identical to those of any Final Report described in the attached
EXHIBIT B. In addition, at the State's discretion, the Contractor
shall, within 15 days of notice of early termination, develop and
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submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement.

10, DATA/ACCESS/CONF IDENTIALITY/
PRESERVATION.

10.1 As used in this Agreement, the word “data” shail mean all .

information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analysés, graphic
representations, computer programs, computer printouts, notes,
letters, memoranda, papers, and documents, all whether
finished or unfinished,

10.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement; shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon termination
of this Agreement for any reason. .

10.3 Confidentiality of data shali be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data requires
prior written approval of the State.

11. CONTRACTOR'’S RELATION TO THE STATE. In the
performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all respects
en independent contractor, and is neither an “agent .nor an
ermployee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shal]l have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers’ compensation or
other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12, ASSIGNMENT[DELEGATTON/SUBCONTRACTS.
[2.1 The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice, which
shall be provided to the State at least fifteen (15) days prior to.
the assignment, and a written conseat of the State. For purposes
of this paragraph, a Change of Control shall constitute
assignment. “Change of Control” - means  (a) merger,
consolidation, or a transaction or series of related transactions in
which a third party, together with its affiliates, becomes the
direct or indirect owner of fifty percent (50%) or more of the -
voting shares or similar equity interests, or combined voting
power of the Contractor, or (b) the sale of all or substantially all
of the assets of the Contractor. .

12.2 None of the Services shall be subcontracted by the
Contractor without prior written notice and consent of the State.
The State is entitled to copies of all subcontracts and assignment
agreements and shall not be bound by any provisions contained
in a subcontract or an assignment agreement to which it is not a
party.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. Unless otherwise excempted by law,
the Contractor shali indemnify and hold harmless the State, its
officers and employees, from and against any and all claims,
liabilities and costs for any personal injury or property damages,
patent or copyright infringement, or other claims asserted against
the State, its officers or employees, which arise out-of (or which
may be claimed to arise out of) the acts or omission of the
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Contractor, or subcontractors, inciuding but not limited to the
negligence, reckless or intentional conduct. The State shall not
be liable for any costs iricurred by the Contractor arising under
this paragraph 13, Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the sovereign
immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby reserved to the
State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall survive the
termination of this Agreement. ‘

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
continuously maintain in force, and shall require any
subcontractor or assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the
following insurance; -

14.1.1 commercial general liability insurance against all claims
of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts of not
less than $1,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000 aggregate
or excess; and ' .

14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering ail property
subject to subparagraph 10.2 herein, in an amount not less than
80% of the whole replacément value of the property.

14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall be
on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the State
of New Hampshire by the N.H. Departiment of Insurance, and
issued by insurers licensed in'the State of New Hampshire.

14.3 The Contractor shall fumish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her suceessor, a certificate(s) of
insurance for -al! insurance required under this Agreement,
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer identified
in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of insurance
for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this Agreement no
later than ten (10) days prior to the expiration date of each
insurance policy, The certificate(s) of insurance and any
renewals thereof shall be attached and sre incorporated herein by
reference, '

15. WORKERS’® COMPENSATION. .
. 15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contrector agrees, certifies
and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with or exempt
from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A (“orkers'
Compensation”). .
152 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the requirements
of N.-H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall maintain, and
require any subcontractor or assignee to secure and maintain,
payment of Workers’ Compensation i connection with
activities which the person proposes to undertake pursuant to this
Agreement. The Contractor shall furnish the Contracting Officer
identified in biock 1.9, or his or her successor, proof of Workers®
Compensation in the manner described in N.H. RSA chapter
281-A and any applicable renewal(s) thereof, which shall be
attached and are incorporated heérein by reference. The State
shall. not be responsible for payment of any Workers’
Compensation premiums or for any other claim or benefit for
Contractor, or any subcontractor or employee of Contractor,

16. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party

- shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the time

of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United States
Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses given in
blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

17. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended, waived
or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed by the
partics hereto and only after approval of such emendment,
waiver or discharge by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire unless no such approval is required

_under the circumstances pursuant to State law, rule of policy.

18. CHOICE OF LAW AND FORUM. This Agreement shall
be governed, interpreted and construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefi of the parties and their respective SUCCESSOrs
and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement is the wording
chosen by the parties to express their mutual intent, and no rule
of construction shall be applied against or in favor of any party.
Any actions arising out of this Agreement shall be brought and
maintained in New Hampshire Superior Court which shall have
exclusive jurisdiction thereof,

19. CONFLICTING TERMS. in the event of a conflict
between the tefms of this P-37 form (as modified in EXHIBIT
A) and/or attachments and amendment thereof, the terms of the
P-37 (as modified in EXHIBIT A) shall control.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The. parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit. :

2]. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement are
for reference purposes only, and the words contained  therein
shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in the :
interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of this
Agreement,

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional or modifying
provisions set forth in the attached EXHIBIT A’ are incorporated
herein by reference. . .
23. SEVERABILITY. In the event any of the provisions of this
Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to_be
contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining provisions of
this Agreement will remain in full force and cffect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may be
executed in a number of counterparts, ¢ach of which shall be
deemed an original, constitutes ‘the entire agreement and
understanding between the parties, - and supersedes all prior
agreements and understandings with respect to the subject matter-

which might arise under applicable State of New Hampshire hereof.
Workers® Compensation laws in connection with the
performance of the Services under this Agreement.
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' EXHIBIT A

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

1. 2 CFR 200 as amended (Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for
Federal Awards), 10 CFR 440 dated February 1, 2002 (Weatherization Assistance Program), the New
Hampshire Weatherization Assistance Program State Plan, Weatherization Assistance Program Policies and
Procedures, and Field Guide are all considered legally binding and enforceable documents under this contract.
The NH Departinient of Energy reserves the right to use any legal remedy at its disposal including, but not
limited to, disallowance of costs, withholding of funds, suspension of agency personnel, disbarment of agency
personnel, disbarment of agencies and/or subcontractors from present or future contracts, and such other legal
remedies as determined to be appropriate by the New Hampshire Department of Justice in the enforcement of
rules and regulations pertaining to the Weatherization Assistance Program.

2. An audit shall be made at the end of the Contractor’s fiscal year in accordance with 2 CFR 200, Subpart F -
Audit Requirements. This audit report shall include a schedule of revenues and expenditures by
contract or grant number of all expenditures during the Contractor’s fiscal year. The Contractor
shall utilize & competitive bidding process to choose a qualified financial auditor at least every four
years.

The audit report shall include a schedule of prior year's questioned costs along with a response to the current
status of the prior year's questioned costs. Copies of all management letters written as a result of the audit
along with the audit report shall be forwarded to the NH Department of Energy within one month of the tirite
of réceipt by the Contractor accompanied by an action plan, if applicable, for each finding or questioned cost.

3. The following paragraph shall be added to paragraph 9 of the general provisions:

“9.4 All negotiated contracts (except those of $5,000 or less) awarded by the Subgrantee shall allow the
NH Department of Energy, the US DOE, the Comptroller General of the United States, or any duly
authorized representatives, access to any books, documents, papers, and records of the Subgrantee or their

subcontractors, which are directly pertinent to the Weatherization Assistance Program for the purpose of
making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcription.” :

4. In paragraph 10 of the general provisions, the following sentence shall be deleted: “The form, subject matter,
content, and number of copies of the Termination Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described in EXHIBIT A.”

5. The costs charged under this contract shall be determined as allowable under the cost principles detailed in 2
CFR 200 Subpart E — Cost Principles.

6. Program and financial records pertaining to this contract shall be retained by the Contractor for 3 (three) years
from the date of submission of the final expenditure report or, for awards that are renewed quarterly or
annually, from the date of the submission of the quarterly or annual financial report, as stated in 2 CFR
200.333 — Retention Requirements for Records.

7. Kirk Stone, Weatherization Program Manager at the NH Department of Energy, has been designated with the
responsibility for overseeing this contract.

Exhibits A, B& C
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. The following paragraphs shall be added to the general provisions:

“25.

“26‘

“27.

“28.

“29.

RESTRICTION ON ADDITIONAL FUNDING. It is understood and agreed between the parties that
no portion of the “Grant” funds may be used for the purpose of obtaining additional Federal funds
under any other law of the United States, except if authorized under that law.”

ASSURANCES/CERTIFICATIONS. The following are attached and signed: Certification Regarding
Drug-Free Workplace Requirements; Certification Regarding Lobbying; Certification Regarding
Debarment, Suspension and Other Responsibility Matters; Certification Regarding the Americans With
Disabilities Act Compliance; Certification Regarding Environmental Tobacco Smoke; Assurance of
Compliance Nondiscrimination in Federalty Assisted Programs; and Certification Regarding the
Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Compliance. .

COPELAND ANTI-KICKBACK ACT. All contracts and subgrants in excess of $2,000.00 for
construction or repair shall inctude a provision for compliance with Copeland “Anti-Kickback” Act (18
USC 874) as supplemented in Department of Labor Regulations (29 CFR, Part 3). This Act provides
that each contractor, subcontract or subgrantee shall be prohibited from inducing, by any means, any
person employed in the construction, completion or repair of public work, to give up any part of the
compensation to which he is otherwise entitled. The subgrantee should report all suspected violations
to NH Department of Energy.”

PROCUREMENT. -Subgrantee shall comply with all provisions of 2 CF R 200 Subpart D — Post
Federal Award Requirements — Procurement Standards, with special emphasis on financial procurement
(2 CFR 200 Subpart F - Audit Requirements) and property management (2 CFR 200 Subpart D - Post
Federal Award Requirements — Property Standards)”

CLOSE OUT OF CONTRACT. All final required reports and reimbiirsement requests shal be
submitted to the State within sixty (60) days of the completion date (Agreement Block 1.7).”

Exhibits A, B & C
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EXHIBIT B
SCOPE OF SERVICES

Southwestern Community Services, Inc., hereinafter “the Contractor” or “Subgrantee,” agrees to perform
weatherization services and all additional services and other work necessary to provide Weatherization
Assistance Program (WAP) services to eligible low income individuals in accordance with the regulations set
forth by the U. S. Department of Energy in 10 CFR 440 dated February 1,2002, and in 2 CFR 200 as
amended, and in accordance with the provisions and procedures contained in the most recent Néw Hampshire
Weatherization Assistance Program (NHWAP) State Plan, Policies and Procedures Manual, Field Guide, and
as otherwise administered by the New Hampshire Department of Energy (NH DOE).

Periodically NH DOE may issue Subgrantee Guidance (SG) and Subgrantee Notices (SN) of other
clarifications as necessary. All such changes shall be considered as incorporated into the NH Weatherization
Policies and Procedures Manual and Field Guide. The Contractor agrees to alter the’Program procedures in
accordance with a SG, SN or other instructions.

The Subgrantee agrees to abide by changes in the NH Weatherization Assistance Program designed to
improve program delivery and further agrees to perform Weatherization Program services in a manner that
will successfully interact with utility administered energy efficiency programs for low-income households in
orderto provide the best services for New Hampshire’s low-income households.

.. The contract period, to be known as Program Year 2022 (PY22), will commence on July 1, 2022, and will
have a completion dateof June 30, 2023, subject to the approval of the Governor and Executive Council.

. Contractor must provide NH DOE with a budget for the use of NH WAP funds before any reimbursement for
weatherization work will be paid by NH DOE.

. In PY22, Contractor agrees to cbmplete weatherization services on twenty (20) dwelling units according to
the standards outlined in the most recent NH Weatherization Policies and Procedures Manual and Field
Guide.

(8) Weatherization Services are intended to increase the energy efficiency of the home, and to improve the
home’s comfort and safety, A certified energy auditor will first perform a NH WAP energy audit on the
home using scientific test equipment. Specific energy conservation measures and heating source repairs
will then be implemented in order of priority and cost effectiveness. This integrated activity is carried

out in accordance with provisions and procedures outlined in the most recent NH Policies and .
Procedures Manuat and Field Guide.

(b} The minimum number of dwelling units and the amount of funds to be expended shall conform to the
provisions of this contract. Deviations of more than 20% from expected dwelling unit goals in any given
quarter may resuit in a reduction of the contract amounts and a reallocation of funds to other contractors.

In accordance with the US DOE's “Quality Work Plan” (QWP) and the provisions of Weatherization Program
Notice (WPN) 15-4 https.//www.energy.gov/eere/wap/downloads/wpn- i 5-4-quality-work-plan-
requirement-update) and as modified in WPN 22-4 (Weatherization Program Notice 22-4; Quality
Work Plan Requirement Update | Department of Energy), beginning April 1, 2015, Contractor must have
regular and reliable access to properly trained and certified Quality Control Inspector(s), available as either
staff or contractors, able to fully function in that capacity. This contract provides funding for continued
training and technical assistarice sufficient to allow the Contractor to secure and maintain the skilled

- personnel necessary to meet the requirements of WPN 15-4 and WPN 21-4.
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6. All work performed under the Weatherization Assistance Program (WAP) in New Hampshire, using federal
money from any WAP program year, must meet the minimum specifications defined in the US Department of -
Energy’s “Quality Work Plan” (QWP) and the associated Standard Work Specifications (SWS) Details are
presented in the Standard Work Specifications (SWS) for. Home Energy Upgrades referred to in US DOE
‘Weatherization Program Notice 15-4 and updated in Weatherization Program Notice 22-4, as well as in the
New Hampshire Weatherization Assistance Program’s Field Guide, 202! Edition, which governs how WAP
energy conservation measures (ECMs) are to be implemented. The Subgrantee must ensure; and be able to
document for NH DOE, that all staff and contractors who perform Weatherization work in PY22 are properly
trained and certified for that work and have been informed that their work must meet the requirements of the
SWS or dwelling units will not be considered complete and reimbursement will not occur.

Exhibits A, B & C
Initials

Date /
Page 4 of 5
Award #DE-EEG009916, CFDA #81.042




EXHIBIT C
PAYMENT TERMS

In consideration of the satisfactory performance of the Services, the State agrees to pay the Contractor,
Southwestern Community Services, Inc., in total, the sum of:

$245,376.00 {which hereinﬁfter is referred to as the “Contracted Amount™), of which

$ 32,920.00 may be expended for Administration,

$ 18,654.00 may be expended for Training & Technical Assistance,

$ 15,504.00 may be.expended for Health & Safety measures,

$ 19,477.00 may be expended for Readiness measures,

$ 158,821.00 (the balance), to be spent on weatherization activities (Program Activity) and.
$ 31,765.00 will be issued as a cash advance,

Drawdowns from the total contracted amount will be paid to the Contractor only after written
documentation of cash need is submitted to NH DOE. Disbursement of the contracted amount shall be
made in accordance with the procedures established by the-State and 2 CFR 200.305(b) on an advance
basis; limited to minimum anjourits needed; and be timed to be in accordance with the actual,

immediate cash requirements of the Contractor in carrying out the purpose of the program. The _
Contractor must make timely payments to (sub) contractors in accordance with the contract provisions.
Contractor shall submit a payment request to NH DOE for each month of the contract period. Payment
requests from Contractor shall be received at NH DOE no later than the 15™ day of each month, or the
first business day following the 15" day.

Administrative costs are provided to cover a specified.number of unit completions at minimal standards.
Administrative funds may be pro-rated by NH DOE if production unit completions do not meet expccted
production goals.

. NH DOE may, as a function of its administrative oversight, modify contracted budget amounts as necessary to
ensure the efficient operation of the NH WAP as long as these modified expenditures do not exceed the
Contracted Amount total as specified above.

All obligations of the State, including the continuance of any payments; are contingent upon the availabiiity and
continued appropriation of funds for the services to be provided.

Exhibis A, B& C
Initials
Date oot
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

STANDARD EXHIBIT D

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C.
701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor’s representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of
the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS
ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
US DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY
US DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace
Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31, 1989, regulations were
amended and published as Part II of the May 25, 1990, Federal Register (pages 21681-21691), and require
certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors), prior to award, that they will
maintain a drug-free workplace, Section 3017.630(c) of the regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference,
sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State may elect to make one certification to the Department in each
federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification.
The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency
awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspensnon of payments,
suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors usmg this form
should send it to:
- Commissioner, New Hampshire Department of Energy,
21 S. Fruit Street, Suite 10, Concord, NH 03301

{A) The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:

(a) Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,
dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee’s workplace
and specifying the actions that wnll be taken against employees for violation of such prohibition;

{b) Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about—

) The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;

(2) The grantee’s policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;

(#)] Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and

4 The penalties that may be imposed upon émployees for drug abuse violations occumng
in the workplace;

(c) Makmg it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be
given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);

(d) Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of
employment under the grant the employee w;l!-—

(N Abide by the terms of the statement and
(2) Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug
statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such conviction;

Exhibits D thru H

Page’ 1 of 7
Initials BD ‘f 29
Award # DE- EE00099l6 CFDA #8



CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS
ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS, cont’d

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
US DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY
US DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY

{e) Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph (d)(2) from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers.of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency
has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identification number(s} of each affected grant;

® Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph (dX2), with respect to any employee who is so convicted—

{1) Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including
termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or

2) Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

{g) Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through implemcntétion
of paragraphs (a), (b), (¢), (d), (e), and (f).

(B)  The grantee may insert in the space provided below the snte(s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (streét address, city, county, State, zip code) (list each location)
63 Community Way

PO Box 603

Keene, NH 03431

Check [ if there are workplaces on file that aré not identified here.

‘Southwestern Community Services Inc. July 01, 2022 — June 30, 2023
Contractor Name Period Covered by this Certification
Beth Daniels, CEQ

Name and Title of Authorized Contractor Representative

_ML(QMQ_/&./ O/1v/28

Contractor Representative Signature ' Date *

Exhibits Dthru H |
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY
'STANDARD EXHIBIT E

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of Seetion
319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and 31 U.S.C. 1352,
and further agrees to have the Contractor’s representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General
Provisions execute the following Certification:

S

CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
US DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY
US DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
Community Services Block Grant
Low-Income Home Energy Assistance Program
HRRP Program '
Weatherization Assistance Program

Contract Period: July 1, 2022 — June 30, 2023
The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that;

1)) No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to any
person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of
Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection
with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-
contractor),

) If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an
officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub- -
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, “Disclosure Form to Report
Lobbying, in accordarnice with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-1.

(3) The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award document for
sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants, loans, and
cooperative agreernents) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a matérial representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was
made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction
imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required certification shall be
subject to a civil penaity of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each such failure,

-

Beth Daniels, CEO

Contractor Representative Signature Contractor’s Representative Title
Southwestern Community Services Inc. . 07/1 &//39
Contractor Name ' Date
Exhibits D thru H
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

STANDARD EXHIBIT F

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12529 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment, Suspeasion,
and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor’s representative, as |dent1fied in
Sections 1.11'and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, AND OTHER
RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS - PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

Instructions for Certification

(1) By signing and subrmttmg this proposal (contract) the prospective primary participant is providing the
certification set out below.

(2) The-inability of a person to provide the certnf cation required below will not necessarily result in denial of
participation.in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an explanation
of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be considered in connection
with the NH Department of Energy (NH DOE) determination whether to enter into this transaction. However,
failure of the prospective pnmary participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall dlsquahfy such
person from participation in this transaction.

(3) The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was piaced when NH
DOE determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective primary participant
knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies available to the Federal
Government, NH DOE may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

(4) The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the NH DOE agency to whom
this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns that its
certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed circumstances.

(5) The terms “covered transaction,” “debarred,” “suspended,” “ineligible,” “lower tier covered transaction,”
“participant,” “person,” “primary covered transaction,” “principal,” “proposal,” and “voluntarily excluded,”
as'used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and Coverage sections of the rules
implementing Executive Order 12549; 45 CFR Part 76.

(6) The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the proposed
covered transaction be entered inito, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered transaction with a
person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this
covered transaction, unless authorized by NH DOE.

(7) The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the clause
titied “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier
Covered Transactions,” provided by NH DOE, without modification, in all lower tier covered transacnons
and in al! solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

(8) A participant.in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a lower tier
covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded from the covered
transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may decide the method and
frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each participant may, but is not required to,
check the Non-procurement List (of excluded parties).

(9) Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records in order
to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and information of a
participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent person in the ordinary
course of business dealings.

(10) Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a covered
transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is suspended, debarred,
ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal government, NH DOE may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

Exhibits D thru H
Page 4 of 7

Initials %L
Award # DE-EE0009916, CFDA #81

22



CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, AND OTHER
RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS - PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS, cont’d

Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, and Other
Responsibility Matters - Primary Covered Transactions

(1) The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its
principals:

(a) are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily
excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;

(®) - have not within-a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had a
civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection
with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local) transaction
or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust statutes or
commission of embezzlement, thef, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of tecords,
making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

() are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (1) (b)
of this certification; ard "

(d) have not, within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal, had one or more public
transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

(@3] Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this certification,
such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions
(To Be Supplied to Lower Tier Participants)

By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as defined in
45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:

(2) are not presently debarred, suspended, prOposeci for debarment, dectared ineligible, or voluntarily
excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.

{b) where the proépective' lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such
prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will include this
clause entitled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and Voluntary Exclusion - Lower
Tier Covered Transactions,” without modification in all lower tier covered transactions and in all solicitations for
lower tier covered transactions.

Beth Daniels, CEQ

Contractor Representative Signature Contractor’s Representative Title
Southwestern Community Services Inc. 07// ‘// Q Q
Contractor Name Date
Exhibits D thru H
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

STANDARD EXHIBIT G

CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE
AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT COMPLIANCE

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrées by signature of the Contractor’s
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification: ‘

By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to
comply with all applicable provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.

”»

Beth Daniels, CEO
Contractor Representative Signature Contractor’s Representative Title -
Southwestern Community Services Inc. 07

Contractor Name ‘ - Da

Exhibits D thru H
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY
STANDARD EXHIBIT H

CERTIFICATION
Public Law 103-227, PartC
ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

~

Public Law 103227, Part C Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro Children Act of 1994, requires
that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility routinely owned or leased or contracted for by
an entity and used routinely or regularly for provision of health, day care, education, or library services to children
under the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal programs either directly or through State or local
governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee.

The law does not apply to children's services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by Medicare
or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment.

Failure to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

By signing and submitting this application the applicant/grantee certifies that it will comply with the requirements
of the Act,

The applicant/grantée further agrees that it will require the language of this certification be included in any
subawards which contain provisions for the children's services and that all subgrantees shall certify accordingly.

.Oanu/La_ Beth Daniels, CEQ

Contractor Representative Signature Contractor’s Representative Title
Southwestern Community Services Inc. - 1% /7 ‘//a_ﬂ
Contractor Name " Date
Exhibits D thru H
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DOEF 1600.5 (06-94)
OMS Control Mo, 1910-0400
All Ocher Editions Are Obsolete

NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

STANDARD EXHIBIT I

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

ASSURANCE OF COMPLIANCE NONDISCRIMINATION IN FEDERALLY ASSISTED
PROGRAMS

OMB Burdep Disclosure Statement

Public reporting burden for this collection of information is estimated to average |5 minutes per response,
including the time for reviewing instructions, searching existing data sources, gathering and rhaintaining the data
needed, and completing and reviewing the collection of information. Send comments regarding this burden
estimate or any other aspect of this collection of information, including suggestions for reducing this burden, to
Office of Information Resources Management Policy, Plans, and Oversight, Records Management Division, HR-
422 - GTN, Paperwork Reduction Project (1910-0400), U.S. Department of Energy, 1000 independence Avenue,
S.W., Washington, DC 20585; and to the Office of Management and Budget (OMB), Paperwork Reduction

Project (1910-0400), Washington, DC 20503.

&. uthwestern Cohmupg‘g’ Services Inc. (Hereinafier called the "Applicant") HEREBY AGREES to comply
with Title VI.of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (Pub. L. 88-352), Section 16 of the Federal Energy Administration

Act of 1974 (Pub. L. 93-275), Sectiori 401 .of the Energy Reorganization Act of 1974 (Pub. L.. 93-438), Title IX
of the Education Amiendments of 1972, as amended, (Pub. L. 92-318, Pub. L. 93-568, and Pub. L. 94-482),
Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (Pub. L. 93-112), the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 {Pub. L. 94-
135), Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act of 1968 (Pub. L. 90-284), the Department of Energy Organization Act of
1977 (Pub. L. 95-91), the Energy Conservation and Production Act of 1976, as amended, (Pub. L. 94-385) and
Title 10, Code of Federal Regulations, Part 1040. In accordance with the above laws and regulations issued
pursuant thereto, the Applicant agrees to assure that no person in thé United States shall, on the ground of race,
color, national origin, sex, age, or disability, be excluded from participation in, be denied the berefits of, or be
otherwise subjected to discrimination under any program or activity in which the Applicant receives Federal
assistance from the Department of Energy. :

Applicability and Period of Obligation

In the case of any service, financial aid, covered employment, equipment, property, or structure provided, leased,
or improved with Federal assistance extended to the Applicant by the Department of Energy, this assurance
obligates the Applicant for the period during which Federal assistance is extended. In the case of any transfer of
such service, financial aid, equipment, property, or structure, this assurance obligates the transferee for the period
during which Federal assistance is extended. If any personal property is so provided, this assurance obligates the
Applicant for the period during which it retains ownership or possession of the property. In all other cases, this
assurance obligates the Applicant for the period during which the Federal assistance is extended to the Applicant
by the Department of Energy. '

Employment Practices

Where a primary objective of the Federal assistance is to provide employment or where the Applicant's
employment practices affect the delivery of services in programs or activities resulting from Féderal assistance
extended by the Department, the Applicant agrees not to discriminate on the ground of race, color, national
origin, sex, age, or disability, in its employment practices. Such employment practices may include, but are not
limited to, recruitment, advertising, hiring, layoff or termination, promotion, demotion, transfer, rates of pay, .
training and participation in upward mobility programs; or other forms of compensation and use of facilities.

Subrecipient Assurance

The Applicant shall require any individual, organization, or other entity with wham it subcontracts, subgrants, or

Exhibit1 .
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DOEF 1600.5 (06-54)
OM3 Control No, 1910-0400
All Other Editions Are Obsolete

subleases for the purpose of providing any service, financial aid, equipment, property, or structure to comply
with laws and regulations cited above. To this end, the subrecipient shall be required to sign a written assurance
form; however, the obligation of both recipient and subrecipient to ensure compliance is not relieved by the
collection or submission of written assurance forms, ,

Data Collection and Access to Records

The Applicant agrees to compile and maintain information pertaining to programs or activities developed as a
result of the Applicant's receipt of Federal assistance from the Department of Energy. Such information shall
include, but is fiot limited to the following: (1) the manner in which services are or will be provided and related
data necessary for determining-whether any persons are or will be denied such services on the basis of prohibited
discrimination; (2) the population eligible to be served by race, color, national origin, sex, age and disability; (3)
data regarding covered employment including use or planned use of bilingual public contact employees sérving
beneficiaries of the program where necessary to permit effective participation by beneficiaries unable to speak or
understand English; (4) the location of existing or proposed facilities connected with the program and related
information adequate for determining whether the location has or will have the effect of unnecessarily denying
access to any person on the basis of prohibited discrimination; (5) the present or proposed membership by race,
color, national origin, sex, age and disability in any planning or advisory body which is an integral part of the
program; and (6) any additional written data determined by the Department of Energy to be relevant to the
obligation to assure compliance by recipients with laws cited in the first paragraph of this assurance.

i

The Applicant agrees to submit requested data to the Department of Energy regarding programs and activities
developed by the Applicant from the use of Federal assistance funds extended by the Department of Energy.
Facilities of the Applicant (including the physical plants, buildings, or other structures) and all records, books,
accounts, and other sources of information pertinent to the Applicant's compliance with the civil rights laws
shall be made availabie for inspection during normal business hours on request of an officer or employee of the
Department of Energy specifically authorized to make such inspections. Instructions in this regard will be
provided by the Director, Office of Civil Rights, U.S. Department of Energy.

This assurance is given in consideration of and for the purpose of obtaining any and all Federal grants, loans,
contracts (excluding procurement contracts), property, discounts or other Federal assistance extended afier the
date hereof, to the Applicants by the Department of Energy, including instaliment payments on account after

such data of application for Federal assistance which are approved before such date. The Applicant recognizes
* and agrees that such Federal assistance' will be extended in reliance upon the representations and agresments
made in this assurance, and that the United States shall have the right to seek judicial enforcement of this
assurance. This assurance is binding on the Applicant, the successors, transferees, and assignees, as well as the
person(s) whose signatures appear below and who are authorized to sign this assurance on behalf of the
Applicant.

Applicant Certification

The Applicant certifics that it has complied, or that, within 90 days of the date of the grant, it will comply with
all applicable requirements of 10 C.F.R. § 1040.5 (a copy will be fumnished to the Applicant upon written
request to DOE).

Beth Daniels, CEO *©  Signature ) Date @#Z[QQ

Southwestern Community Services Inc.
63 Community Way, PO Box 603, Keene NH, 03431
603-352-7512
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY
STANDARD EXHIBIT J

CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY
' AND TRANSPARENCY ACT (FFATA) COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of
individual Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010, to
report on data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more.
If the initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or
over $25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of thé award.

In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
New Hampshire Office of Strategic Initiatives must report the following information for any subaward or
contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:

1) Name of entity
2) Amount of award
3) Funding agency ,
4) NAICS code for contracts / CEFDA program number for grants
5) Program source :
6) Award titie descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7) Location of the entity
8) Principle place of performance
9} Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS #) 4
10) Total compensation and names of the top five executives if: _
a. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those
revenues are greater than $25M annually and
b. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment is made.

The Contractor identified in'Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-
252, and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation InﬁJrnﬁrian), and further
agrees to have the Contractor’s representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General
Provisions execute the following Certification:

The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the New
Hampshire Office of Strategic Initiatives and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountability and Transparency Act. :

33 E :a dha! é ég ‘ Beth Daniels, CEO

(Contractor Representative Signature) {(Authorized Contractor Representative Name & Title)
Southwestern Community Services, Inc. b9
2Y/22
(Contractor Name) (Date)
Contractor initials; E.D
Date:
Page | of 2
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY
STANDARD EXHIBIT J
FORM A

As the Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, 1 certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

1. The DUNS number for your entity is: 08 1951 38/
2. The Unique Entity Identifier (UED) is: _ HMUIIX K8 MBI CD

2. In your business or organization’s preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans,

grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual gross revenues
from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or cooperative agreements?

-X NO — __YES

I the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here
If the answer to #2 above is YES, please{answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your business

or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 780(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986?

NO : YES

If the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here
If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are ds follows: .

Name: Amount: ___
Name: Amount: ___
Name: __ Amount:
Name: Amount: ____
Name: Amount:

Contractor initials: BD
Date: 07/}

Page 2 of 2

Award #DE-EE0009916,
CFDA 81.042




State of New Hampshire
Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, David M. Scanlan, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY,
SERVICES, INC. is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on May 19, 1965.
I further centify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State’s office have been received and is in good standing

as far as this office is concerned.

Business ID: 65514
Certificate Number; 0005755656

IN TESTIMONY WHEREQF,

[ hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed
the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,
this 11th day of April A.D. 2022,

David M. Scanlan

Secretary of State
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CERTIFICATE OF VOTE
(Corporate Authorlty)

1

(Name)

er the “Corporation™), a
| acting Clerk/Secretary
ks of the Corpomtnon

that the Board .bf Direc

ce and effect until _Sep

» acting Clerk/Secretary'of Southwestern Communi

(Corporation name)

New Hamgshlrc corporation, hereby certify that: (1)1 am the duly

(State) ;

of the Corporatlon ()1 mamtam and have custody and am familiar with the
3) 1 am duly authorized to issue certificates with respect to the contents of such
rs of the Carporation have authonzed on June |8, 202) » such authority

{Date)
ember 30, 2022

ic

! ©

!
(s) holding the jbelow lis
h any contract ?'r.other i

th Daniels

btract termination date)

ted position(s) are authorized to execute
nstrument for the sale of products and se

and deliver on behalf of the
rvices;

Ch:cf Executive Officer

(Naroe)

{Position)

.5

(5) The me
taw gnd the
and gontin

of a

thoriz

WITNE
 da;

COL{NTY ¢
On 113'3

\.’Ji\\

{Name)

eting of the Board of Di

by-lam of thei Corpora
es in full force!and effes

(Position)

fectors was held in accordance with _New Hampshire

(State of incorporation)

n modifi ted, amended or rescinded
erpt of dated minutes or copy of article or section

Hion; and (6) said authonzat:on has not been
2t 83 of the date hereof, Exc

g by-law m | bea

55 WHEREQF, | ha
b of _ LALLV

ve 1mulnto set my hand as the Cl;:rk/Secr

ed.

ctary of the corporation this
,2022 ’ '

f
|

I

Clerk/Sec_:retary

DF _Chcsh\wc

day of I]u\u

undcﬁsigned
to belth

Officer personally ﬁpp
i i\l

eared who acknowledged her/himself

of ]

n\r_! CALYY, | b

o

as sm}h c
therein cont

IN “érmes

I "
Commission

{

hined. !

.i
Expiration Da;te:-
i

[
S WHEREOQF ,I I hereun

a corporation and that she/he

ng suthorizéd to do $0, executed the f‘oregomg mstrument for the purposes

t0 set my hand and official sea),
N

O

Publicf]us_tic'e of the Peace

L

A. TOMLIN

Jusdce of the Pe
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CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE oz

ACoRY

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF.INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S). AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If tho cartificats holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED. the policy(ies} must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or ba endorsed.
if SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certaln pollcies may require an endorsement. A statemaent on

this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder In lleu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER GONACT Ana O'Donnell. CPIW, CIC
Clark Mortenson Insurance PHONE . (603)352-2121 | (A%, mey. (603} 357-8491
PO Box 606 ADORESS: aodonnell@hilbgroup.com .
' INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE HAIC #

Keena NH 03421 INSURER A : Fhiladslphia Indemnity Insurance Co. 18058
INSURED ) . wsurer B : Maine Employers Mut Ins Co : 11149

Southwestern Community Services Inc. INSURER C :

63 Community Way INSURER D :

PO Box 603 INSURER £ ;

Keene NH 03431 INSURER F
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 2022 to 2023 REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS. .

TNSR ADDLEUBR] POLICY EFF g
LTR . TYPE OF INSURANGE 3D [wvp POLICY NUMBER (MDD VYY) | (DO | Loarrs
COMMERCLAL GENERAL LIASILITY : EACH OCCURRENCE - 1,000,000
. [DAMAGE TORENTED
| cLaimsmape IE OCCUR PREMISES (En ocourance) | 3 100,000
B : . MED EXP [Any one parson) s 3.000
Al PHPK2431763 063012022 | 061302023 | pepsonaL saovsury |3 1,000,000
GENUAGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE ¢ 2.000,000
POLCY PRO: Loc PRODUCTS - COMPIOPAGG | 5 2,000,000
QTHER: s
| AUTOMOBILE LABILITY RS ED SINGLE LI $ 1,000,000
| anr auto BODILY iINJURY {Perperson) | §
[ | owneD SCHEDULED
A |} Almos oy o8 PHPK2431766 06/30/2022 | 06/30/2023 | BODILY INJURY (Par ccident) | §
HIRED NON-OWNED : FROPERTY DAMAGE 3
| [ AUTOS oNLY AUTOS ONLY | tPer accident)
h s
[ <] UMBRELLALIAB - | ] occur ‘ EACH OCCURRENCE s 2,000,000
A .| EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE | : PHUBS20879 0673072022 | 0613072023 | ,curecATE s 2,000,000
oen | <] meTenmon 5 10.000 ' - o. ) '
WORKERS COMPENSATION FE T
AND EMPLOYERS® LIABILITY YIN X st || 500000
B | e R mDon i ey CUTIVE NIA 3102800768 04/01/2022 | 0410172023 | k- EAGHACCIOENT $ o
{Mandatory in KH) , E.L. DISEASE - EAEMPLOVEE | 5 500,000
i yes, describa under . . 500000
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below E.L. DISEASE . POLICY LT | 5 300
: EACH OCCURRENCE - $1,000,000
PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY
A PHPK2431763 06/30/2022 | 06/30/2023 | AGGREGATE $2.000.000

DESCRIFTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES {ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedules, may be attached If mors space s required)

3a State: NH
All officers included for coverage

CERTIFICATE HOLDER_

CANCELLATION

NH Department of Energy
21 South Fruit Street, Ste 10

Concord
1

NH 03301

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

N—-L_._:-IL P Z TNy /== S

ACORD 25 (2016/03)

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reservad.

Tha ACORD name and logo are reglstered marks of ACORD -




. -aCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY'31; 2021°AND 2020
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'I@wﬁeiBb'é@:'Qf.D.!@cfd@ of GERVIFIED,PUBIC ACCOUNTANTS.
iSouthweSten Community Seevices; Inc: . WOLFEBORO & NORTH CONWAY «
Kaene, New: Hampshire. - | + JOVER - CONCORO. *

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

"Reporton the Finantlal Statemerits o
'Wa have> auditad the. ;accompanying -consdlidated- financial’ Staterigrits: of Souttiwestan

Comimanity: Servicas; Inc. (a, New- Hampshir nionprofit-corporation) dind’rélated compantes;

whiéh Gomprise.the’consdlidated statement of financial position as-of May.31, 2021, .and the:
; rr‘.e]ia,t,ed.bp:hfsdli_d‘a,t'edf statements:of activities, functichal éxpenses;-and’cash flows for the year
- Aian énded; ard:the:related. niotes to-tha consolidated financial statements: t

Maiiagenient’s Rosponsibllityfor the Finansial Stateménts
- \Management Js responsible‘for the préparation” and fair presenfation .of these conslidated:

fengial slatements?in-accordance wilh acoounting:prnciples generally accepted inhe United
States of ‘America;, this: includes. thedesign, limplementation, .and maifienance ‘of intemal
control relvari. to the- preparation BAd falr présentatiori‘of. corisglidated findnglat stateiments-

{iat are fre:fror Miaterialmisstaternignt, Whethet due o fradd oF efior:

Audifors’ Responsibifity: L _

" ‘Qur.responsibility:i$-to.express an*opinioi-on thése-consolidated Finaricidl stateménts. baséd-
‘Giour Budit."We condictedgur audit in -accordance with audifing - :standards ganerally -

" raccepted in<the United ‘States of America -ant the -standards appiicable. {6 financialaudits.
:contained In: Government:Auditing. Starioards, issued by the: Coniptidtier'Generalofhg United;

States' Thode standards .requirs, that we:jplan, and pierfom ine. audits 1o, 0btaln reasoriable;

Assurance :about whetfier the.consolidated financlal statements, dre. fredr from matera
misstatement.. .

A it iiVolvés, efforming procedires 1o: obtain-audit eviénce.about:the: amounts. and
disclosures.ir: the: consolidated financial statements. The-procedures. Selected dépend:on fhe
Auditrs” judgment; inéluding: the. assessment sof the " risks. of natenal misstatement -of the
<ongoiidated finangial “staferneils, -whéther -dug-'to fraud. or- eiror: ,In making-fhose. fisk
‘assessmants;, the alditor considers intéma) ‘control Télevant ta- the: entity's. preparation and fair-
piésentation:of.the, consolidatedifinancial statemerits. in-ofder to:design,audit procedares thal

s - . .

\a appropriats.In e circuiiistances, bt riotfor;thi purpose of expressing g ‘opinloron the

-effactivansss of the entity’siinterndl-cantrol:: Accordingly, .we. aXpress.no siich 6pinion.-An dudit
g o . Pt . . Y " i - . \ . . 7 ', ] 1

alsoe intlvdes svaliallng, s approprialéness’ -of accounting. poicles: used. and: e

. \feasonablendss of 'significant: deounting ¢stiniales. fade by, .mdnaganignt,. dy Well 4as-
.évaluting the oVérell présentalion of the:consolldated fifiancial statements:.

Weibélleyé that.ihe:audit évidenc:we havéobtained is sufficient 4nd appioprats to:provide-a
Dasisforour-audit opinion:. T

h=



Oginlon

Jn"our opinion the ‘consolidated ﬂnancral statements réferred to. above p‘resent fa|rly. Insall
’ materral respebts‘* the ﬁnanctal positlon of Southwestem Communrty Serwces Inc and related
compames tas of May 3§,720215'and {he changes In their net asseis: and their: cash.ﬂows for the-
-year thentended in accordance ‘Wwith accountmg pnncrples generatly accepted in: the Unrted

‘Statee of. Arnenca

We ihave previously. audtted. Southwestem Communrty Senrlces Inc.. and related eompanlesr
2020 ftnancgatfstatements and we . expressed an unmodified audit op:nlon«on those audited
finariclal statements in- our report dated 'October 5 2020 in our. Oplnlorl‘ the summanzed'
comparatlve informatlon presented heretn ‘as of and for the year: endeg, May w31, 2020 is
conslstent. ih"allfmatenel respects : With.thé’ ‘audited finahcial statements from’which It; has been
ndenved

Otﬁer Informa tion
“Qur.audit:was- conducted Tfor-the- purpose of forrntng' an oplnlon or¥ the consohdated ftnanqal-
statements as a- ‘whofe: The accompanymg schedules of expendrtures of federal ‘dWards, ‘as"
urequrred by T'tle 20s: Coda of Fedaral} Regu!at.'ons (CFR) ‘Part. 200, Dmform Adm!n!stratNe

. .Requlrements Cost Princtp!es,‘, and -Audit: RequrrementSv for ‘Fedéral Awarls, ‘and “the
Scheddles of, Functronal Révenues and Expenses :are presented for ,purpeses of addrttonal '
analysrs and are not a requ:red part of. the oonsolldeted financlal st.aternents Such informatlon
igithe: responslbtllty of management and was;derived. from énd ‘relates dlrectly to tt_te undertytng'
aooountlng and: other 8Gords. used to _prépare the consohdated ﬁnanctal statements‘ “ihe’
lnformatton has béef - subjected to ‘the audrtlng procedures apptned in-the -audit; of the
consolldated ﬂhancial statements ‘and, certain addlttonat procedures mcludmg cOmpanng and
reconcllmg such. lnformatton directly o the underlylng accountmg and- other,records ‘used: to
prepare the eonsotldated financlat statements or fo the consolldated i nanctaj statements-

. a.themSelves 1and other addltronal procedures In acoordance wlth audltmg 'standards generally
accepted in. the‘Untted States of Amenca ‘In_our opm:on the information is falﬂy stated Inralt -

atertal respects in relatron to the consolldated finangial: statements as'a.wholg.” ' .

Other:Reporting Reqiiired by -Government Auditing Standards.

In;accordance-with. Govemment Audmng 'Staridards;, we have also. tssued our report dated

Octotg\er '22,72027;, -6n "‘our. constderahon of Sduthwestem Commumty Servlces.,lnc 'S Intemal '

control over ﬁnanclal repenmg ‘ang’ ‘on. ourtests of its cornpllance with Certaln .provrslons .of

© laws aregulatrons contracts -and. grant agrééments; and other. matters “The purpose of that

.._»report i to descrlbe the - ‘scope -of. our testrng of mternal control over fi nancial reportlng and )
'compltance and the results of that testlng, and’ riot’ to 'prov:de ‘an.- oplnlon on. lntemat control
over -ﬂnanclal reportmg Oron. compliance That réport is-an mtegral part of., an,audlt performed
JIn/atcordance with Government Audmng Standards in: considering’ Southwestern Comminity.
Servnces Inc ) tntemal contnol over. finandial réporting and: compllance

Ootober 22, -2021.
Wolfeboro New Hampshrre



CONSOLIDATED STAFEM ENTS OF F!NANCIAL POSlTlON

2021 AND 2020
.A_SSE’_T.S.
2har- 203y
GURRENT ASSETS , B
. Cash-end:tash equiviients $ 1722841 . 8. 13400153 .
' ‘Agouils régeivabia, fiat 1,784,636 A.20%322
‘Prapaid axpénses’ ».52,628- - 57.68;
iNotes recaivabld 2,357 2,357 -
'Tolal Wm&'ﬁ’!ﬂ?‘ t_iiiﬂz.m ;‘ AL
.PROPERTY L
andland biiidngs 28, 537986+ 19,243,210,
Vghicigs an¢ ogidpmant. 555 340 ‘641,236
Fmiturg and fidures . - 271.75%"
Toml property -20,058,199.
* Loy agcumisted depraciatori —B551876
vOTHER ASSETS - o
lnvasf.menl In. retated part}es 138,004 198,492 -
Due, from relatad paries.- 55,138 '59,087
‘Cash. ebaow and- raserve funds 1,471; 141, 809,897
Semdty, deposils. - 105 780 ‘.69,75_7-
Other as.-.ets ) _ L R gﬂ;;
Taial ottier gsseits: - _AIIN0547 . 1,137,607,
.,tﬁm;.-a_,?,;g,_t; . 1§ 21158477 -§.95,287:040
ABILITIES ANG NET-ASSETS
cunnem UABIUTI_ES RSl yaiis s -
Awbunm'ﬁay@ble“ $ 240 ssa' '$. 180 872
Accrued expénses . 170; 074' < Eroda
Accrund Daymll anid. payroll laxas- .- 244 QOB 228‘394
oc.hef current libbilles: - ‘148,854 449,184
Refuridable advances . 729,055 260,437,
"Curent partion of.ong term dabt ...___112:‘7_" ,‘,_—M
Toml Qurrenl nam.ue.-.; -4 675 546" 1 641 004
._NONCURRENT L|AB|L!TIESr e e
‘Long tem' dabt, Iess curranipdition shown abovo 14,300,411 8.805,857
Economlc tn]wy Dlsaslar ‘Loan’ 150,000 . .
Paychod: Pmtacuon Progr-am logn., A -'439 070
Total noncuiféit iabliyss ._A44;450,411 9,344 927 .

 Tohal liotiies.
N EI’ASSEI’S s
Wuhoul doNor mstrla:ons
> w‘th donor raslrlcuoqs
Total riet asseis:

"Fota labite'sid net. adsats.

- ;1'3,1-?3;057

_ 10‘385 931

7.815, oss 4; 768,837
_ -215 349 T 144,412
._3.030.4.14 .iz'.91:-1’.109.

‘e Notes td Consolidated Fiianclal Statements

s

§ 15,207,040



' .REvenues AND OTHER suppom‘
Govcmmem conitricté’
Pmnrum senvico foes:
- Remai lﬁboma
1Deve!pper rea Ineorne

.Fomlvanass &l datl. -
Miscdlianoois .
ln-l:lnd oonlrtl:mlms

-T otel § mvamas 820 oiher mppprl

-QIETwAssErs RELEASED FROM
' RESTR!CTIONS-

-nel asseL-. re!aased Trom mstrlcll’um

=EXPENSES

Progrﬁm sorvinns .
‘Hoﬁte erkmy plograms
.,Educauon and fwtiitien
'Homeh:s progmrw

. Hous!ng seMces .
Ecooou'dc dwe!opmem services
Olhot pmgmms-

To;gl pronrum tefvlc&g .

T Supponlng ac‘llvlllos w
Mariagamem and oeﬂoral

Tgtal expanses

-tCHANGE IN NET ASSETS BEFORE
LOSS ON SALE. OF PROPERTY

_'LOSS OH SA.LE OF PROPERTY

.Loss.ou INVESTMENT IN u_me_&gﬂjmsg‘_ﬁ_n_{_ws '

......

-NET ASSETS ‘BEG !NNING OF YE}\R

. ~NET-ASSETS TRANSFERRED FROM
LIMITED, PARTNERSHIPS -

.NEF ASSETB END OF YEAR

Ak

- WithouytDoner - With Donor-' 1’292:.1, 1-2920'._
'Restricttons Besifictigns Iotal ‘Tetal,
RIRTR IR R S - §.14:451 4T + $10818.72¢
" 2,708.902 .- 2,708,802, - 2:606,816-
1,857,741 - 1 65?.741- 11,165,032"
5 i “1,508.
485,814 136,024 - 6o, 638 - 833,610
21,703 T 25703 28,548
1,402 - ;4,402 | 9224
518,501 : "$12.501" 79,338,
239,098, 0 239,098, '448,1 13’
8.5414 - . '85:'414' - =187 553
20.129.870 36024 G20285684' 15410467
‘5,147 ' {85:147) L -
. > .
: 4 -
5,559,497 - 6,558,497, ‘8450880
2,829,099 - 12,829,099 .2,887.812°
5,616,502 - '5,516,302- £2,060,655
2913651 : 2913853 . 2433660, .
621,784 . 621,784 737,663
750430 1 s 750430 175342
- 17,99i,265 A 1;,;;91_.2@5 13,343 921,
2,948,672 m 572. 11 '7"51 842 .
iog3oedr __ . _ig@ls, 937 A5 aib, 563
295080, 87T 325857 ig45102)
- - 1140), -
(60,807) - . (80:807), “(236))
194,183 70877 265,060, {194:476)
4,166,837 145477 49108, 6108387
2B54345 .- £, _, 285a3s, =

$.

$ 7615085

“'Sag Notes to Consalidated Financlai S{atdmants

.3

215,349 _.§' : 8030414 s ”4,911,109.
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. CONSOUDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS;

TEe o R THE YEARS enoeo MAY 31 gozg AND. 2020
.g_nn - té_ﬁéﬁ\' .
ViICASH FLows F'R‘éM‘OP;RA'ﬂNG ACTWmES . e
‘ChiangeTh del assata: § ‘285060 5 (1047478
Mgustmonts o facondils ehange'in nel’ asseu lo ’ ~
.fet.cash from operaung ctvilies: . .
~Dapreciabion : 509,155~ 663,252
Loss on dlsposal of propeny t140
Loss on [nvestment in imited partnarships- (60, 397 _ <238
Forawenm of debt - (518 501) ,(79"338}
Decmaaa (mcraase) in sasols:
Amounls mcelvablon _(580_.504) . -42.337
Prépaid gxponids. . *.31,348, Y(5,448)
iterest: rqcelvable ) L AM 45.547
Dua from relaled pertips! _ 3929 .38
-Secinly dopasily . 2.242). H&TT).
(Gea'eaae) fhcreaie in Ilabulties .
Accounls. payable . 22 045 '(230 941)°
Aaauodexpensas o : '38929 (32.567)!
Aacmedpaymll and payroll laxes . 15,608 > :{5.508).
Other durvdrit, Ilabi!iues (300) 10,414,
Rifundabla advances: ' 439 51800 109,443
'Inlemsl payab‘a - —_ e :(49.5’47),
. NET'CASH PROVISED'BY ORERATING ACTIVITIES . | . BB2pAE . 266,760,
CASH FLOWSFROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES et
"Purctiase of prnpertgh . '{432,40C 400) —1138, 174):
wNET CASHUSEDIN' INVESTING Acnvmes o {432 400)' | _136 174L
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING Acnvrn:-:s . _ _ .
,Prbceeds from Iong tafin debt” © ' 185 000 36 679
*~Repayment 6t long'term debt . (272.082) '(127 ns)
. Procesds fiom Ecohomic In]ufy Disaster Loan® ) -150, 000
-/ Procests frof Paystiack Prqtacﬂon Prugmm , . T - 4439, 070
. !NET'CASH‘(USED:IN) Pnovmsn BY FINANCING ACTIVITIES: : {37,083 .. .-347-.92:_5;-‘
‘NET INCREASE 1N-CASH. AND RESTRICTED EASM *313:481 = 476526
QASH AND’ RESfRIéTED CASH aacmmns OF YEAR _ 2,210,050 1734520,
» CAsu AND; RESTRICTED CASH musream—:o e
FROM ummzn PAR‘I’NERSHlPS BN £ 5 |3 N
:GASH AND RESTRIGTED CASH, END OEYEAR * ' .$_3104882  § 3210086

1Gb3:NBte3 fo Consoigitod Finarclal Sfaiements
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CONSGLIDATED STATEMENTS OF‘CASH FLOWS {CONTINUED)

" THE- S DED AY

-SUBPLEMENTAL BISCLOSURES QF.CASH ELGW INFORMATION

Cash pald duﬂng the year for lntamst

20

AND

2020

"SUPPL.EMENTAL D!SCLOSURES OF: NONCASH INVESTING AND’ FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Propatty ﬂnsnbod by Iorig term debl

Tronstei of agsas fror| nowly éansdiidated iPs:
Prepaid emmssa
.Land:dnd biAlding s,
Furniture sng fixtures:
Securily dapdsits:

Total ‘transfér 6f-pesels ftom newly consoudamd LPs

.....

Transfer of Iiabilltles from ‘newly ccnsolldated LP&:
Accounts | payable
- Abtryad’ upenses
Duq‘ln retaled panm
Langtérmn debl.

‘Jolat trangfer.of liabilliag from _na'my consdiidsted LPs,

Total‘parlneru caplml from newly comoﬂdated LPs

L)

;Iclgﬂrqn__sfqr—,qi- pf_artnen cgplta!frgmnewf_g gona_oﬂgalad_LPg '

*Sae'Notes to'Consdiidited Financlal Stitamants.

2021 faozo
5o | & _idsing
/1 T T
5 4 'aaaor 3. :

'3382,003° - -

624,491, . -
233781 :
$..4077082 -$ =
'$ .+ 57885 €. s
4622, -

‘ ,1_.390;293_' ) :_-
3 19‘94‘235 k3 e
3 '2"333 94a § N
'-29"7 z

g 28624 3 -




‘NOTE 1.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED'FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
EOR THE 'YEARS ENDED MAY 31, 2021 AND:2020 2020

ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SlGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

General

Southwes,t_em .C.ommunlty Servrces Inc. is & New. Hampshlre nonproﬂt cdrporatron
tormed as an umbrella corporatlon that offers an. array- of servicas 10 the’ elderly
dlsabled end low-tncome households in-the: Cheshiré.-and Sullrvan oountles of
New Hampshlre Vaﬁous programs provide : assnstance in the, araas . of educetlon
chtld development employment energy - and its conservatlon houelng. and
homeljessness preventron Se'n‘rlces arg provided through' Southwestern
Community- 'Services, Inc.. and its- reldted ‘corparations,. -SCS. lManagement
Corporatlon SCS° Houslng Inc., SCS. Developmiént- Corporation, SCS- Housing

Development ‘ine.; and: ‘various ltmlted partnershlps as descnbed below The

_ Orgamzalionvs commrtted to. provrdmg irespectiul support services and asslstlng.

lndrvlduals and. famllres rn achrevmg setf-sufﬁclency by helping them overcome ‘the-
causesé‘ of poverty The pnmary source of revenues is denved from govemmental'
contracts. - .

Printrples ‘of Consolidation
The consalidated ﬁnancial ‘statements lnclude ihe acoounts of- Southwestem

-Commumty Servlces Ingand the; following entrlles‘(collectrvely ‘He. Organlzatlon)

as Southwestem Coi‘nmUnity' Servrces Inc. has both an economi¢’ interest and’
oontrol of the anfitigs’ through a majonty votmg .interest’ ln«thelr govemmg board:.
All’ slgniﬁcant Intercompany .rtems and transactrons have been- elirinated from the
baslc oonsehdated‘f nanmal statements

'S Managerient Corporation

'SCS; Housing. ne

.SCS 'Development Corporatron

SCS ‘Housing- ‘Development, Inc;

Drewsvltle Camage House Assocrates lelted Partnershlp (Drewsvllle)

Troy Senlor Housrng Assoclates Lirmited: Partnershlp (Troy Semor)

Keehé East Side Semor Housrng Assocrates Limited-Partrership (Keene

East Side)

' . Wlnchester Senlor Housing. Assodiates, Linlted: Partnershlp (Wmchester)

fa Swanzey Township Housing Associates, Lirnited: Partriership«(Swanzey).

.« Show Brodk Meadow Vrllage Housmg AssOCiates. Limited Partnership -
(Srigw. Brook)

-+ Keene:; nghland Houslng Associates, Limitéd: Partnefship. (Keene nghland)‘

o Warwick-Mgadow Houslng Assocrates Limited, Partnership (Warwrck)

‘g, 85BN W
LY



‘NOTE 1 .

'NOTES fO‘CONSOLIIATED FINANCIAL‘STATEMENTS.
FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY: :31; 2021 AND 2020

ORGANIZATION: AND 'SUMMARY OF: SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING P(il:lClES
‘{€ontinued):

'Basis ofAccountlng
The consottdated ‘financial stateménts. 6f 'thd Organlzatton have’ .been prepared.
iutrllztng the: .gccrual ‘basis. of accounttng in. .accordance wrth genera!ly accepted.
-acmuntrng pnnclples

‘Basls of Presentatton

‘The consotldated financial statemients of the‘Qrganization:have. bgéi prepared in,
'accordance wrth US generally accepted accountmg prtnclples ws "GAAP),

-which requqre the Organrzatton t0: report. mforrnatron regardrng its: ﬂnancial

-posttron and actmtres accordrng to the- fottowrng net asset classifi catlons The
clesses of riet assets -are' detenntned by the'. presence or absence .of donor—
rmposed restrictions: :

Net- aisséts: withoutdonor [est'nctlcn Net asseéts that .4rg tl’lOt sub;ect fo.

-donor—tmposed réstrictions” -and ‘may’ be‘ expended for any purpose in

: performing the primary objecttves of the, Organtzatton These net assets may'
'used at the d]scretron of the Organtzatton s Board of Dlrectors

,Ne gssets with-donor restictions; Net assetﬁ;subject o stlpulattcns lmposed -
by donors and,grantors Some! donor-restncttons arg temporary in nature,,
"thosé; restrictions<will be, met: by . actions ofd the Organtzatton or.by. passage of’
ttme Gther donor restrictions:are perpetual rrt‘nature whereby the: donor has*.
\strpulated the funds ba maintainedin. perpetuity

As 6F. .May 31, 2021 and. 2020; thé ‘Organization Had _nét -assets’ w:thout dénor
restncttons and wtth donor restrictions.

ThHe - fi nanclal rstatements mctude cerfain. prtor—year summanzed comparatrve'-

' tnformatton i total'bit not by net.dsset ¢lass. ‘Such’ rnformatron does: n’ot ‘inciGde

sufﬁcrent datgil.to ccnstltute a3 presentatlon in confonmty with’ gengrally. eccepted

''''''

accountlng pnncnples Accordmgly. such‘mfcrmatton shoutd be're ead tnfoonjunctton-
wlth the Orgamzatron S ﬂnanctat statements for: the year ended May 31 2020 from-

' whtch the summanzed information was derived.

Refundabte Advances

The. Organlzatton -records. grant and contract.revenue: as. refundable advances untrt
it: ts expanded for- the purpose of the’ grant or contract at Wthh hme itis recognrzed.
as. revenue



‘Estimates . . . . | .
- The presentation of financial siaterments i :confarinity- with . generlly-dgcapted”

NOTES 0 CONSOLIDATED FNANCIAL:STATEMENTS
. FOR'THE YEARS ENDED. MAY 31, 2021 AND 2020:

' ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY-OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING :POLICIES. -

(continuéd)

in:Kind Support — e .
Thie~Qrganization: recdrds various types of-iri-kirid -support Including, professional

senvices a‘nd‘.‘rba'iéﬁ‘al;ﬁ 'Cbn‘t'rib_i‘;ted"p'rbfefsispﬁal_- sevices ‘are recoghized. If. the.

. N - s YO T R TS M S L AP TR e A AR T
service recelved. ¢reatas. or-enhances long-lived assets or fequifes.Specialized Sklll,

g provided. by individuals possessing:those skills, and would typicaliyingéd. o ba
purchased ff not -provided: iby donation: Contiibutions of tangiblé’ -assets™are

recognized at fair value when received.

acéounting. pringiplés requiras managefent t6 make éstimates-and assumptions

that. affect (e wrepdrted -amounts. of ‘dssets .and. liabilities and! disclosure -of

. ‘contingent-dssets and'liabiiities 2t the date of the. financial- statemants. and: the

réportéd AMGURtS of revenues, and.exgensés during the TepSiting pefiod. Actual:
resiiits' could differ fror those gstimates. o '

Cash dnd -Cash Equivilents B _ .
For purposes-of the :stalement of Gash flows, the Organization considérs all liquld.
investments purdhased with original maturities of three' months-or less'4o be: cash
equivalents. - - R

The: f@lic_)'vi}i-‘pg-}‘t’a'p'_le« 'gr@),_,{:idj_oéaj_s--g—_'r_e'cqncii'iatigri_.‘-pf ¢ash and restnctedcashreporled
within: thig statements:of financial position:that sunytq the.total In.the gtatements of.
cash flowsasof:May. 31,

1]

(=X

3021 20/

|

Gash, opérationts. , §-9722041 "8 10400153
‘Casti‘escrow and reservé funds ~ 1,471,741 809,897

Fotal 48 and restridted cash §3404682 22210050

Actounts Receivable o
'A(:,Cb'l.lnt'é,!f‘éj:_'ei_\ia'bIé;;af_e','sfat_éd,ji,'i_l the amo_iunt,maﬂQQEmenf'B)(p_equ 16 chl!BgFff Qrﬁ"-

Balances outstanding -at. year end. *Balanices ‘thatiare still dutstanding ‘dfter
fianagement has. used. reasonable 'dollection ‘éfforts. are- wrilten. off fhrough a
charge ‘o ‘Ahe valualtion' allowance: and a credit o -accounts feceivable. The -

allowance, for uncallegtibléagcounts was: estimiated 10 b zero-al May 31,:2021
and.»2020:. The ‘Oiganization ‘has no _poficy fof-charging, Interest. on"overdue
accounts.’ ' ' ' ‘ ‘



NOTE 1

NOTES TO CONSOL‘IDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT_S
"FORnTHE YEARS ENDED MAY 31 2021 AND 2020

— o ——= O}

' ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES-
iad):

Current Vulnerabilltv Dié %o Certaln- Concentrations

The. Orgamzatlon Is. operated in.a- heavrly regulated fenvrronment Thig operatrons
of the Organlzatlon are-Subject .t.. the -administiative dlreétlves rules and'
regulations of. federal slate and local regulatory agencies. Such admrnlstratlve
dlrectlves mles‘and regulattons are SI.ijeCt 6 change by.an ‘act of Congress of*
Legislature Stich- changes may:occir with: little; notice: or- inadequate fundlng 10
pay-for:the. related cost, inchiding. the. ‘additional. admlmstratwe burden, to comply:
with 4. change. For the-ygars-énded Maly:31,'2021%.and 2020, approxlmately 71%
and.69%. trespectrvely of the 'Organization's- total fevenue was recélved: from
govemment .agencies: The, future nature.of the OrganlzatJon is dependent upen.
contmued support fromi thé govemment

Coicentration of Cradit Risk ‘
The Organization maintains. its cash aecounts- ln séveral f nanclal Instttutrons
whlch at tlmes may exceed federally Insured_ _Irmrts The Orgamzatlon 'has not

expenenced -any, losses in such accounts and.. belreves it is not.- exposed to any
signrﬂcant nsk with respect to these accounts

Piopéity-aiid Deg iraciation:

Purchased property and equipment-are- st_ated at -Cost at the date of. aoqulsltron
of at. falr value at-the date of recelpt in .the .case of* donated property “The-
Organrzatron generally capqtalrzes and depreclates all assets wlth a,Cost’ greater‘
than: $5 000 andan’ expected life- greater than one year: Depreclatlon Is: provrded
for’ usrng the straight -llng ‘méthod in.amounts. designed. to amortlze the - ‘tost Bf,

the: assets".over thelr estrmated useful lwes as follows«

Bulldrngs and Improvements 10 40 Years:
‘Vehigles-and’ equrpment 510" Years
'Furnrture and: t‘xtures ' 4 Yea,rst

The use of :¢ertain: assets ‘is specrf ed under the terms.'of grants recervedrfrom '
egencles‘- of. the federal government These - -grants also place- lanS on-oertaln
assets and, i |mpose festrictions.ion: the: Uise’ of funds received:fromthé dlsposltlon-
of thé. property Deprécratron expense. for the yéars ‘endéd May 31, 2021 and 2020
totaled 3909, 455 ‘and $663 252, respectively..

Advertlslng

The: Organlzatron expenses advertising costs ds lncurred

12



‘NOTE1

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE . YEARS ENDED MAY 31 2021 AND. 2020

_ORGANIZATIO_N AND. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
I .nttnuedl

Income Taxes

Southwestem. Communlty Servicas, Inc,.-and SCS Management Corporatlon are'
exemphfrom Federal income taxes under "Section 501(c)(3) of -the, Intemal-
‘Revenug, Code and are not private foundatlons:.’ As such, Ihey‘are ‘exaimpt: fnom.
income,tax on theIr exempt function income.

--SCS Housung, Inc., SCS Development-Corporation and SCS: Housing Development;
InG. aretdxed as oorporattons SCS Housing Ihc: has federd) niet operaling Ioss
tia‘rfyferwards avallable for the May. 31, 2021 .dnd .2020: :tax. retums totahng
$1,230,101-and:$1,135,222, respectwely ‘Thesé loss cafryforwards fay bg offSet
agatnst futiire taxabte Income and, if not used, wIII begIn to exptre in 2027. SCS
E)evelopment Corporatlon hias federal net operatlng foss’ canyfomards totahng $542
and $555.at May:31,2021and: 2020,,reSpectlver Thése loss carryferwards may- be
offset agalnst ‘future taxabIe income. and, ifnot used, ‘will begin to. explrg‘in 2022
SCS Houstng Development Inc! Ras federal net operatmg loss: t:arryforwards
totahng $59 8q1 .and $35,574 at May 31,2021 and 2020, respectwely These'. loss
carryfonuands may.be. oﬁsel against future taxable incoma and, if- not used Wlll begIn
to eprre in 2035

The tex effects of the carryfomrards -as rélated 16 deferred ttax ‘essets is-as
foIlews asof May 31 2021 and 2020

...2021 : '2020 >
‘ ]'ax benefit ffom loss caryforwards . $271,025 . '$246,404.
~VaIuat|on allowance 271 025), I_A_O_)
‘Deferred lax asset 5—— e

Drewsvtlle Troy ‘Senior, Wmchester Keene East :Side, Swanzey. SHOW - Brook
Keene nghlend and ‘Warwick. are° taxed as partnershlps Federat incomd taxes ere
not payabIe by, of- prowded for these' entitiés. Eamrngs and Iosses are inciudad. In
the - partners federal lnoome tax retums .based: oft' their .share iof pantnarship.
earnings Partnersh!ps are: requtred to file incorme, tax- retums with_ the; State of New
Harpshire,and. pay ap income tax atthe state S statutory rate.

Accouriting' Standard ‘Codification,. No.. 740; “Accountmg ‘for. Income Taxes
established: the minimum-{hreshold for recognizing, afd.a-systém for*measunng.
the beneﬂts of tax refum . positions in financial statements Management has
\analyzed ‘the: Organlzahon s-tax positton 'taken on its Income tax retums for all
open’ years and has’ concluded that no- -additional provislon for: Income taxes. Is.
necessary. dn the: Organlzatlon 8- ﬁnenc:al statements

43-
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NOTES TO-CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31, 2021,

ND2020. -

ORGANIZATION'AND SUMMARY OF: SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

Falr Valué of Finahcial instruments )

FASB ASC Topic No. 820-10, Financial Instrumients, provides a definition of fair
value: which fociseson an_ exit price rather fhah ;an @nlry price,  estabilishes: a
frameWork h generally accepted accounting: principles for ‘measuring fair.valué
which @mphasizés that faifvalus is .a markét:based measurément, Aot:an entity-
sfxaqfi.c r"g'lézépSI.I_re;r_r’l_e‘h_ti .and requirés 'expanded “disclosurés -about fair value;

* ]

. measutemants: 1" accordance: with.-ASC: 820-10, the "Orghnization ‘may” usa

valtation; techniqles. consistent with: market, income and ‘cost approaghes to
measure'fair valié. As a basjs for cohsidering market participant assumptions in
fair value: measurements; Topi¢ 820-10:establishes d fair value.hierarchy, which
prloritizes: thé " ifputs used. i measuring faif values. The hiérarchy: gives, the
highest ‘priority. to Lgvel 7 mgasurements .and the lowest priofity to .Level 3.
measuréeménts.. The three levels of the fair valle hierarchy under ASC' Topic.

820-10 are déscribed as.follows:

-Level 1-— Inputs t6 the-valuation methodology are guoted prices avalable In
active markets for [dentical inveStments as of the reporting date.. .

Lével:2:- Inputs to the valuation méthodglogy aré dther than quotéd Market
" Jorices in agtive. triarkets, which are either, direicily.or indireqtly-observable as.
of. the ‘réporting. date, and fair vaillie, can be detémingd through: the iise of

‘models of gther valuation methodologies.

Level 3+ Inputs to the Valuatioh methddology aré inobiervable Inputs in
-sltuations whieré:there is'little or no riarket activity for. theé asset or-liabllity and,
:tha reporting: entity, makes estimates.and, assumpfions relateéd to'the pricing ‘of

the assét.or liability including assumptioris fegarding risk:

The:carfyingramount of tash, accounts fecaivables, prepaid:expenses, accounts
payablé, :accrued -expenses, :and refundable’ advances approximates ‘fair value

r] tar 2 s ch

because'of thé short matunity of those instiuments.

Revériue Récoghition - ' . )

Amounts recelved from conditional grants .and ¢ontracts feceived for specific
p::ﬂ?.osgsséc‘ei generally recognized ds Income to:the extent that related expensgs
and.“conditionis. are. Incurred or' mat. -Conditional ‘grants - received, prior 'to the.
conditibns belng met are reported as refundable. advances. Contributions. of cash
and: other assets-are reported'as with donor restrictions iif they are. facelved with-
doriorimposed Stipulations that limit the'use of the donatéd_assets. However, if.4
réstriction'ls- fulfilled 'jn"the ‘same ‘peridd iri-which the contribition is feceived, the’

Organtzation reports tHe .support asiwithout donor restrActions. -

14.



NOTE"4

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FlNANCIAL STATEMENTS
_FOR THE- YEARS ENDED MAY 31;:2021. AND 2020

ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNlFICANT ACCOUNTING POL(CIES:

{continued)

ngram Semce Revenue
Program servrce revenue :ds. recognrzed as revenue, when “the - servrces -are
performed

_ BentaI'Revegue

‘Thé Qrganizatioh. derives.revenués. from.ihe réntal of apartment unrts ‘Revenues
‘are reoognized as.income, monthly  wher Tents' ‘become due :and contml of the.
.apartment units’is transferred to the !essees The: mdrvrdual Ieases argfor a- term
-of ong year. anid -are canoelable by the tenants Corifrol of the Ieased units, is
transferred tothe, lessee ‘in an .amodint- that reflects' the consrderatron the
,Partnershrp expects to be.entitiéd to in exchange:fof the. leased Units. The-cost
Incurred {o obtaln a leasewill be expensed‘asincuried.

' Performance Obquattons ‘and- Coritract Assets:and Liabilities -

The: pedognance obirgatrons rélafed to:the léase contracts and programy: $érvices
are satlsfi ed at a'polnt in‘time.. Revenusg: from performance obllgattens satrsf ed
.at-a- ‘point. in trme oonsust of monthly réntal payments. and fees: for- pregram
-services There; are 70 contract assets or habltmes for.the’ years endedrMay 31

2021 and' 2020

New Accounting Pronctincement ]
In: May 2074, FASB issued ASU 201409 (Toprc 606)— Revenue’ from Contracts_

with- Customers The ASU andn all- subsequently issued. clarlfylng ASUs replaced'.

riost exrstmg revenue reoognrtlon gurdance VEH GAAP. The ASU “also” requires-

LN

e)gpanded disclosures relating to the rature, amount trmrng, and’ uncertamty of

revénue from. cash flows -arising. from contracts wlth customers. The Organrzatron

adopted the * new ‘standard’ effectlve June 1; ‘2020, thé first, -day &f the
Or‘gamzatron §:fiscal yéar using: the modrﬁed retrospectlve approach The adOption
did.not: result in‘a change -tg-the. acoountrng for ‘any of the applicable revenue
streams; as such, no cumulative® effect adjustment was recorded See reverive.
reoognttlen 'polrcy ebove

Functional Allocation of E;_;Lnses

The .cosis. of provrdmg the various. progrems and other activities*have been’
sugrmarlzed ‘on a fuh&tional basrs ‘Nattiral ‘expenses are defined. by therr nature,
such as: salartes fent,: supplles etc ‘Funictional: expenses are’ classtﬂed by he
type of ectlvity far whlch expenses are lincurred 1 such as: Managemerit and:
general and. drrect prograrn costs Expenses are allocated by function. uslng !

reasonabte and consustent approach that Is pnmanly based onfunction and use.

15



NOTE.4

* NOTE .2

NOTE3

'NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
‘FOR. THE YEARS ENDED: MAY 31; 2021 AND 2020

ORGANIZATI(?N AND SUMMARY OF:SIGNIFICANT ACC_OUNTING POI..ICIES
(contlnued[

Functional Allocation of Exp
The :gosts: of -providing. -certain program and supportlng services, have ibeen
dlrectly charged 3

The Organization: submits .dn mdrrect ‘cost rate proposal for:ihe. ‘paid’] ‘leave, fnnge-
benet' ts. *and othgr- rndnrect costs to the U. S Department of. Health and Human
ser\nces "Theé indirect: cost rate. is 12% effectlve from- June. 1, 2019 ‘through lMay
31 -2022; :

BANK LINE.OF CREDIT
The’ Organlzatton has a:$250,000 revolvnng fine of credit agreement wtth a bank '
interest isdue: monthly and is stated at-the. Wall Street Journal Prime Rate or at.a

' floor rate -6f 4%." The line i is secured- -by:all the. Organizat:ons assefs: As-of May

31,2021 and 2020 the lnterest rate was 4%: Theré was no-olitstanding balance
at May 31, 2021 and 2020.

LONG TERM DEBT _
Thalong term debt at May 31 2021 and. 2020 consrsted of the following:

2024 2020 .
1% mortgage payabile.to- New Hampshrre Hous[ng_ o T
in manthly instailmerits for .principal and interest of
$891 through August-; :2032." THe note.i§ secured by.
real. esfatd:of -the' Organlzatlon (NHHFA 86 Main .

 Strest). . S § 1270000 §. 136370

Non-rnterest beanng mortgage payable 10
Communrty ‘Development Finance Authority, in
quarterty principal payments based ‘on-an operating
Incarre - formula applled to affordablé- housmg
portion -of the-:spacified real .estate. Tha, note is.
secured By real estate of- the Organization (CDFA

.96 'Maln Street) 27,589; 129,589

525% note payabte to a bank in monthly
installments for princrpal and Interest ‘of :$988
through March 2021 The note was pald in full
dunng the year ended May 31, 2021 The néte was

secured by feal -éstate of the - Organization o
(Peopig's United Bank; Ashuelot) - 19,652

A6



NOTE3.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE'YEARS ENDED MAY 31; {2021 ANQ_ZO?O

ELONG TERM DEBT contlnued_‘

==

iNon-lnterest beartng mortgage npayable to ‘New
Hampshlre Houslng Payment is deferred for .30
years ’through Septemberx2031 gr- uritit pro;ect 15

sold or-refi nanced The - note is seoured by - real'

edtats of the Organlzation (NHHFA, 17 Pear).

Non—lnterest beanng mortgage payable to New
.Hampshlre Housing ‘Paymerit 'Is deferred for 30

years through July 2032, urless-theré is surplus. :

cash from whrch to:make a payment,.or- until: pro;ect
i§ sotd 0f, reﬁnanced The’ ripte-is’ secured by real
estate of the Organlzatlon (NHHFA 41-43 Central).

©4.25%: mortgage payable- to & bank' 0 manthly

mstallments for pnncrpal -and Interest-of $1; 875
through December 2018, with a balloon payment
that ‘was due January 2017 The note ‘was
amended dunng the year- “ended May 31 2019,.and
is: now duie December 2026. Under the- amendment

mterest rate is: 4 94% and monthly installments for.
pnnclpal and mterest aré " 31, 957. The note is.
.schred by. .real estate of the JOrganlzatron

(People s,Unlted Bank Mrlestones)

4375% hoté: payable to, Rural Housrng Servrce i1}

monthlyr.lnsfallments for pnncrpal angd .interest of
$11,050: through May 2049 The-note is secured by
redl estate of the: Organlzatron (TD Bank; Keene
Qffice):.

Non IAterest.- beanng note payable 10, Cheshire

County iy New Hampsh:re ' Payment is not.

necessary unless Organlzatlon défaults on contract
[The" note. s "sécured, By ireal estaté of ithe
Organlzatlon (CDBG, Keerie Officé).

2021

376,086

142,702,

‘460,000

,:'z_oio_

244:505;

378,383

130,23-0

480,000



NOTEZ

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-
FOR THE' YEARS ENDED MAY 31;:2021 AND.2020"

'Note payable t6 ‘d, barik:in: monthly instaliments for:
pnhclpal and rnterest of $2, /463 including 1nterest._-
thr‘ough May 2039 rlrtterest is ’adjusted every five’
years based on remarntng .pnnctpat balance and:

*Classic. .Advantage ‘Rate™ -provided - By Federal
Home‘Loan Bank.of - Boston whtch resu!ted in an
lnterest rate. of 4.67%: at May 31, 2021 ‘and 2020

The note Is secured by feal ‘estate -of tha.

Organlzat!on D- Bank Keerie -Office/Community
Way):

5§719%. -hote” payab'lé 10 a bank in morithly
installments: for. pnncrpal ang. intarest’ of $889
through May 2021 The fiote was paid in full dunng

the year ended May 34; 2021 The note ‘was.

r;ured by real- estate of the Organlzatron (7D
Bank 45° Central Street)

Nén-intergst: bearing hota. payable to. the- United
States DepartmenL .of- Housing and; Urban
'Development Ne paymenl s due and. begrnnrng “in
January 2015 10% of the nofeis forgwen gach ygar

'provtdmg the property i§ used for -low. Income;
houstng .through January 2025. ~ ‘The .ndte Is

secured by réal gstate of ‘the Orgahrzatron (HUD»
Ashue!ot)

Non-‘interest' bearing hote payabls, to the: Unlted
States. Department of. HoUslng "and. Urban
Dévelgpment, No payment s due and begmnrng in
January 2015 10% of the note is. torglven each year

provrdrng the property is gsed for . Iow income:
housing through' January 2025. The note is secured,
by sreal estate of -the Organization “(HUD; 112 -
‘Charestowin Road)

2021

376617

:45,000.

N
(=]

[ L
[-= I

.
.
-
S

38957

100,000

160,000



‘NOTE.3 -

INOTES TO- CGNSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
IFOR THE .YEARS. ENDED.MAY 31,:2021 AND 2020’

Lon‘c"'-TE'RM*oeer'(i’:ominuadl

Non-lnterest bearlng note ‘payablé to. ‘New.

Hampshrreﬂt-tousmg in anpual paymerits’ i the

amount of. 50% of anriuél,surplus cash’ through'July
2042; at. which, tife - the: féhiaining balance Is due..

The “note. ifs secured by real estate of the
Organizatlon (NHHFA Second Chence)

Non-intérest. beering -hoté payable to .a county ‘in-

New. Hampshlre No payment is dug- and 5% of,the
balance is torgrven ‘each yéar through 2032 when
the remalning “balante-becomes due. The note is
secured by realiestate of the' Orgamzatron (CDBG
Seécond. Chance)

Non’tnterest bearing -note payable to 8 county in
New Hampshire relahng to. an agreement between

theI Clty of Keene and SCS tor the purpose of‘

$472 000 from CDBG SCS wrlt receive the funds
as. progress Is made; The noté is secured by feal

gsfale of the‘Orgenrzatron. and-will be futly forgrven- :

provrdmg the- facrtlty “Berves low- and. moderate-
income indjvidyels for: 20 years (CDBG Keene
Spelter) '

554% Tote .payable to a- finance company. in
monthty installments’ for pnncrpat and interest -of
$543 through August 2022 ~Thé note ‘is: secured by
@vehicls (Ally. Econgling Van)

6:54% note :payeble fo a “firance company. in '

morithly - -installments: ;for .princrpat and Intefest of:

$442 through.November 2023.-The nolé was. pald
i full during :the, year_ended May,31, 2021

note was.Securéd by-a vehrcle {Ally, GMC: Acadna) >

299% note - payable o a bank in nmonthly
installrhetits for principal and initerest’ -of $820

through May 2031 The: :note’ is secured by real

éstale +of* the’ 'Organrzatron {Savings Bank of
Waélpolé; 45, Central Street)..

19,

2021

794,189

311,808

326:809

7,815

84;395,

794180

328,219

8§ ,:5.09

5,903



NOTE3

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31 A 2(_]21 AND 2020

LONG TERM'D E'BT.i.éontinue'd)'.

Non- interest .beanng note ‘payable to 1 county in

New Hampshire. relatlng 10 an. agreement between
the. .Ctty of Kéene,.and 'SCS for the purpose of’
rénovating Keéne shelters. In total, SES will réceive
$472 000, from ‘CBBG: .SCS will receive the funds
as progress s amade ‘The-note is secured by -redl
estate -of the. Organization and will be fully forgiven
providing the. facehty serves low- and moderate-
income: Individuals £6r-20 yéars- (CDBG -Elm Streét
Shettér)

Non-tnterest bearing note- payable, to the - City of
Keene New Harvipshiré., The riote expires in Jurle
2022 and payment is -not necessary unless the.
Organization defaultsc on contract The noté s
$ecured by real estate of the Orgamzatlon (City. of
Keene, 139 Roxbury Street)

Non-ifiterést, bearmg note payable to the City of
Keene,: New Hampshlre with an-original balarice -of
$240 000 ‘teducad o :$204,000: when the
Organization acquured the note from IKeene
Housing In. July '2020:-No payment is-due; arid ‘5%
of the. balance_is forgiven éach year thiough: June
2037 The' note, is Seturéd. by real .estaté-of the
Orgenizatioh (Ctty:of Keene; 139 Roxbury"Sti‘eet)

Troy Senior < Non-interest bearing note payable to
a oounty 1n New Hampshire Payments are deferred
untii the' note ‘nvaturés in. June .2029;- “The: riaté is
secured by«real gstate of the Organizatu)n (CDBG)

Troy Senior -'Non interest’ beanng note payable to
New: Hampshire Houslng Finance Authority to fund,
enerjjy’ efﬁcient Improverients thifough. ‘the.
Authonty’s Greener ‘Homes. Program Payment st
deferred for 30 ;yedrs, through August, 2042 The
note Is, secured by real estate of the Orgamzation

2021

r£2el

189100

774100

~204,000.

640,000

140,210

“f

840,000

140,210-
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_NOTES 10 CONSOL[DATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
"FOR: THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31 2021 AND 2020

LONG'TERM DEBT (continued)

Keene East Stde - Non—mterest bearing fiote
payable to ‘a oounty in, New Hampshrre Payments:

are! deferred unttl the: note matures in December‘

7028, Tha note ts secured by 'real estate ‘of the
Organrzettoh (CDBG)

Keene East Slde - Non interest beenng note
payable Ao . New Hampshrre Commumty
Developrnent Finance Authonty (COFA) to° fund
energy. upgrades and capital Improvements

Beginntng in 2018, 10%.of, the note is forgiven gach™

yaéar based- on the rolllng bajance. The: mortgage
may be released; after, ten years in January :2026.
The note 1§ .secured” by real -estate  of the.
Organlzation (CDFA)

" Kéend 'Eaft ' Side .~ Nominterest bearing néte

payable to New Hampshlre Housmg to. fund energy

efficlent. Improvements through the Authonty 5.
Greener Homes Program,. Paymant is_deférired for-

30 [iyears; through -August 2042, - The .hote’ is

sécured, - by ‘teal estate of the Orgamietlon-

(NHHFA).

Swanzey - Non-recourse 4.90% sifple interest

mortgage note payable to the. New Hampshlre
Houslng“(HOME) due September 2033, pnncrpal

_and lnterestr payable at thé ‘sole’ discretton of the
tender from Jthe. excess cash of the borrower-

determmed by fonnula .s6cured by the
Partnershtps land and bunldmgs subject to low
ihcome housing use. restrictions for the 30 year
terrn of the mortgage

Swanzey Non-fecourse mortgage: note payable to
New Hampshlre Housmg (AHF) -due’ September
2043, ‘payablé In monthly Installimenis of $1,698,

lncludlng Interest at 235% secured .by ‘the:

Partnershlps land and bultdmgs sub]ect to low

income . housing usé’ restrictrons for thé 40 year"

tefm of the. mortgage

2021

906,000

139,860

287,110

353,561

2020,

00,000

152,880

228634

'280,996 -

365474



:NOTE'S

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31 2021 AND 2020

.L’dNG"fEﬁM;-'e‘EEr‘té'onunuedt

2021
Snow: Brook Non:recourse,, mortgage: ‘riote -
payet;le to New Hampshlre ’Housnng, due. July
2057-- payable in [nonthly instalimerits, of :$2,002
Including Interest at 4.35% secured by the
Par‘tnershtps {and’ and buuldmgs sub;ect 10 low
income houslng use restnctlons for the.: 30 year

term:of the.mortgage:: -436,974

Shiow Brook ‘Noa- rec()urse zero-intérest. mortgage
noteé payable {0 New:, Hampshlre Housing, (AHF)
dug’ June 2034..prinC|pal' and. interest payable at
the: ‘sole dnscretlon of lhe Iender from the excess .
cesh'vof thd 'borrower -determingd by fopmula,
secured by the: Partnerships larid, -and bulldlngs
subject to. Iow Income. housing use- restrictions” for

the 30.year-tem. of the mortgage. - 237473

mterest at 2. 00%, secured by the. Partnersh:p g Iand
and” burldlngs subject to- low Income housing ‘use
restrictions . for the 330" year term 6f - the- mcrtgage

fiote (NHHFA). - 431450

Wnchester - Non-récourse Zérp, Interest beertng
mortgage‘ noté: payable to- New Hampshlre Houslng
(FAF) dug’ May 2032, payable at'he, solé’ dlscretuon
of the- Iender from-the -excess cash: of the, borrower
determined - by. “formula;, .secured- By thé"
Partnershlps ‘land? and. butldmgs 'subject o low
Income houslng use: restrictions. for- the .30-yéar

‘temiof the mortgage 1iote (NHHFA) ‘ 79,609

Wmchester =.Nop-recourse, Zero mterest beanng.
diféct subsrdy ‘AHP  Joah. sécured. by the,
Partnershlps land .@nd. buiildings, subject to ow-
mcome houssng restnctrons under.the. térms ‘of+the:
AHP agreément. In; the-gvent: of &; ‘defaulf under the

‘ afOrementtoned agreement the loan s due upon

demand wrth tnterest accrued at & rate.of 11.67%

for:the: period -the fuinds’ were outstandmg (Federal -

Hdrie Loan' Bank) 150,000
‘22, |

441,872

237473

46,078

'.8 5 L 0‘2‘8.

150:000-}



‘NOTES" TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS_

.....

1FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY, 31,2021 AND 2020 .

‘NOTE'S,  LONGTERM.DEBT {ontinued)

n
o
F=9

R

| °.l

1.
o

Keerie® ‘Hughland -. Non-recouiise: mortgage nole.

payable to New Hampshire Housmg (AHF) due

-August 2035, payable in. -monthly: mstallments of

$3.122: including interest.at '2:90%, secured by the

Partnersr]ip 8. land. and bu:ldlngs subject 10 “low.

incoma.- ‘housing :use. rastrictions for ‘the" 30 year - . . _

term of the morlgage note (NHHFA) 434765 -

Keerie nghland ‘e 30 year, zérg.interast, non-
fecourse defen'ed mortgage note ‘payable t0- the
City - of Keene New Hampshire' due" Jiine. 2035
paynient-of pnnclpal is deferred. until the due date; o
secured by land’and buildings (Cily.of Kegne).. .815,000. -

T

Wanv!ck ++.30. year, zero ‘interést, non‘recourse

deferred lmortgage note' .payab!e 10 the; Town of

Winchester, "New Hampshlre due . August 2036,

payment -of ﬁrincipal is -deferred Unfil the due date,

securad by and and  buildings. [(Town of L ‘
Winchestér). ' 500,000, 3

Total Iong:térin debt before Unamortized daféired- o v
financmg costs 11,460:204: 9,049,482 -

Unammortized déférred finanting ‘costs 1719y __(jegeny

. . . . 11.442; 585_.- g} 031'181
_Le's_s_'qur_ten_tpbr'tjoﬁ-.d_t}[_e,-j\_gvithih one year. 1&2,174 . 125,324

The schedulé:of atunities of long'term debtat May 31,2021 is §s fllows:.

Year E nding .
May 31 -Amount,

T 2022 . § 142,174
2023 142,488
2024 146,073
2025 151,449

12028, 157,310

Thereafter 10,720,710- .
Total $11,460.504

23



NOTES T 0 CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.
FOR: THE YEARS ENDED MAY' 31 2021 -AND. 2020

NOTE4  OPERATING:LEASES.

' The Organlzetlon leases facrhtles equment.and vehlcles under non-cancelable.
leese agreements et.,vanous fir nanclal tnstltutlons 1Lease perlods range from:
‘maonth. to. month ‘to 2025, Marithly lease payments range frairii. $800 {0 $3 625..
Liéasé expénse for the years .endéd .May 31 2021 and 2020 totaled $148 143-
and $140, 758 respectlvely

'Future mlnimum payments as-of May. 31 2021 on- the above Ieases are as-

follows: -
Year'Endlng ’

May:31, . Amount -
12022 - $ 69,243
2023 94,050 -
2024 | - 720.
2025, i 120
Total 3

NOTE.S'  ACCRUED COMPENSATED:BALANGCES
" At:May 31,:2021 ‘and.- 2020, the: Orgamzatlon accrued a Ilabllity for future annual,
leave. time’ that it employees had earned and vasted i the ‘amount of $144 916
and. $141, 970 “respectively.. ‘

“NOTE®"  CONTINGENCIES

B ‘Southwésterr Community Services, inc: is'the 100% owner of SCSHousing, Irit:.
and:SES. Houslng Development ng.. SCS Housmg, lac.,.and SCS Houslng
Development Inc.are the general partners of - erght hmrted partnershtps formed-
to. develop Iow-tncome housung projacts through the: use of Low'Inicome Hous:ng
Tax Credits Southwesterm Community Services, inc., SCS Houstng, J0¢: and
SCS Houslng Development ¢, have, guaranteed repayment of habllities of“
various - partnersh|ps totaltng approxumalelyf $14,027, ;000 and $13 988 000 et
Maye31 » 2021: and 2020 respectnvely

Partnershtp red|- estate with a ¢cost basis of approxlmately $27, 348 000.-and,
$35/896,000 at: May.31,.2021 and, 2020, fespectively, ‘provides’ Collateral - on
these: loans



‘NOTES.

NOTE7

“NOTES.-

tNOTES 'I'O ‘CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS .
!FOR THE YEARS. ENDED MAY 31 2021 AND 2020

CONTINGENCIES (conttnuegl
The Organtzation recelves funds under vanous state grants and from Federal

use the funds wuthln a certatn penod and for purposes speciﬂed by the govemlng
laws and regulatlons If costs were found not to-have beer incirred. in:
compltance with'the laws and ‘fegiilations; thé Orpanization mtght be, reduired 1o-
repay-theé funds

No provtsions have been made for th:s cont:ngency because specifi ¢ amounts tf
any. have not been détermined or assessed by government audits as of May 31
2021 and 2020:

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:

Dunng.the years @rided :May 31: 2021 and. 2020 SCS Housung. lnc managed,
ping .and. glaven limitéd - partnershtps, .respecttvely Management fees charged by'
SCS. Houstng, Ific: totaled $228, 239 and $295, 814, for the years: ended May 31,
2021 and 2020 respectrvely Addlttonatly. SCS Housing. Inc "has. advanced the
Itmlted partnershlps funds for cash ﬂow purposes over severat years '

The 'Organlzatlon has 2ls0 advancéd funds+o & retated enttty for Department of-
Houslng and Urban Development (HUD) sponsorship purposes

The total -@mounts due and expected 10.be collected from the ttmlted ipartnershlps
and related entmes totaled $55 138 and.. $59 067 at May 31 2021 and‘ 2020.
respectwety

EQUlTY INVESTMENT
Southwestem Communlty Servioes tnc: and retated compames use the equttyv' :
method ) account for their fl nancnal :nterests in the: followmg oompanles

2024 - 2020
Cityside Housing Assoclates, 1-P- $. (9.509) & {9;505)
Mariborough-Homies, 1P '(43) {27)
Payson Villagé. Senior, Housing Assoclates LP (12,524) (12 514).
Réilioad Squiare ‘Seniof Housing Associates, LE 1(2,247) "(2,071)
WaI'WICk Meadows Housing Assdcidtes, LP' R (28)
Woodcrest Dnve Housmg Associates, LP - 180,727 - 222, 842
Westiill Senlor Housing, LP -49. 64
Keene: nghfand Housing Assotiates, LP = (269)

Alstead-Senior Housing Associates, LP _.18452) _-(18.441)

25 )



NOTES

EQUITY. INVESTMENT (continued)

SCS~ Housing Deve!opment Inc. is a- 001% partner of Cdyside Housing
Assoeiates rLP Marlborough Homes LP, Payson Vlllage ‘Senlar Houslng
Assocuates, ‘LB, Warwick Meadows Housrng Assocrates LP; Woodcrést Dnvev
Housrng Associates- P, and ‘Alstead- Senior Housing Assocrates LP, a0 0%.
par\ner of Railroad Square Senlor Housing Associates, LP and a1%. partner -of

Westmrl! Semer Housmg iLP dunng the: years. ended May 31 *2021'3nd-2020.:

SCS HOUSing, lac. 184 0: 01% parther of Wlnchester Senlor Housrng ASsociates
P, Swanzey: Townshrp Housmg Associates; LP, Snow Brook Meadow Village-
Housing Associates 1P, and Keene nghland Housmg Assocrates LP dunng the:
years énded: May 3t 2021 and 2020.

Assoclates LP and Warw:ck Meadow Housmg Assocrates LP were acquired by'
Southwestem Cemmuntty Services,, Inc. - dunng ihe year xendmg May 31 2021»
{see Note 13) and therefore Ihe limited pannerships are included in the:
consohdated fir nancial statererits for- the: yéar ended May. 31 2021

Summmarized': ﬂnanclal inférmation’ for entitiés. ,accoumed for under the equity
meihod,,as Of May. 31 2021 .and 2020, £5nsists of thé- foilowmg -

2021 2020,

‘Tofaidssets - gsaife R S8
‘TotalVabilities: - 15,200, 16,530°
Caplta[lMember’s equlty 37,969 _. 40,102

§oSage 4 seen
" Ingome § 3267 -8 3408
Expenses 4719 4707
Netloss, $-0452)  §.01209)



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31,2024 AND 2020

NOTE®. RETIREMENT-PLAN

Thé-Qrgariization: malntams 8. tax sheltered annuity ptan under ;he_,pmvlslons of.
Section 403(b) of the-lntemal ‘Revenue Code. All employees who have had at
least 30 days of.: sepvice to'the QOrganizalion.are ehglble to. €otitribute to e plan;.
The Organlzatlon begins matching™ contrbutions after the employee Has, reaChed
one year of service. Employer contrlbutlons afe. at’ the Orgamz.alton S dlscretion'
and:totaled $206,322 and $278,209 for thé years ended May 31, 2021 and 2020
respectrvely

NOTE10 RESTRICTIONS ON NETASSETS = o
: Net assets. with.danor restrictions. are available for the following. purposes:

2021 2620
NNECAG — Annual Confergrice Fund $ 16646. '$ 4,814,
GAPSam Furid: 101,736 - 91,725
Fransport _ 90,000, 40,000
“H$ Parents Association ;16,967 7933
Total riet assets witk dorior, restictions £.2210349: «§. 144472

NOTE1  BOARD'DESIGNATED NET ASSETS .
: The. board deslgnates a pomon of the: unrestncted net -assets for WM Marcello
GAPS fuids. There was $12 760 and $14,888 des:gnated by: the board at May
33; 2021 and; 2020 respectively -

‘NOTE12- EORGIVENESS OF DEBT.

B ,Dunng the. years ended May. 31, ‘2021 and: 2020, ‘the Organizatlon redlized
forglveness ‘of debt mcome in connectlon with. notes. payable to; Cammuﬁity
Development Biock Grant HUD and Communlty Developmem Flnance
'Authonty Forglveness .of 'débt incomse totaled $79, 431 and:$79, 338 for the,
years ended May 31; 2021 -ang. 2020 respectlve1y

The.. Organlzatlon -recognized forgivenass of debt of $438; 070 related 10-.the
Paycheck Protectron Prograr dunng the year, ended May 31 2021.. See,-
,addmenal detall at Note 15.

27



NOTES'TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31 2021 AND 2020 _

.NOTE 13. TRANSFER OF PARTNERSHIP INTERESTS
' B During Ahe year: ‘ended- May 31,:2021, ‘Southwestem. Cominunity - Servrces lnc
acqulred a partnershlp Interest in two ow:inéome. housmg fimited partnerships.
Keene Hrghiand and Warwick: The. amount .paid* for the parlnershlp intarest in
Keene Highland ahd’ Warw:ck was $1 -each,:.and. at the time. of aoqufsitionu
Southwestem Communrty Serwces tine. became the: gerefal partner

The foImwmg is.a summary of the assets and fidtilities of the: partnershlps at the"
daté‘of acqu:salien

Keene _
Hightand ~ Walwick
Date of Transfer- : 07/01/2020  01/01/2021
Cash. ' $ 156907 § 68,061
Securitydeposits 21,321. 12,460
'Cash resefves 391,456, 154,727
Propeity,inet 2,769.245. 4,237,249
Other gssets. : wme 25,8460 ]{)_861 '
Totst assets, 3364875 _1,483,358
Notes: payéble 1372220 518,078
Other-liabilities - . P 048 18939 .
Totatliatillitles. 1,457,268 537,017
Partnars capltal - 1,907:807 946,341

Partners capital prev}ously recorded ) .
s an investment in;related parties _ 269 . 28

28



NOTES 10" CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FG)R THE*YEARS ENDED MAY:31; 2021 AND. 2020

NOTE44.- LIQUIDITY.AND. AVAILABILITY -
o The! fellowing® rapresents Southwestern Comr‘r’iumly 'Serv:(_:es Inc and related.
companies fi nancnal assets asof May 31, 2021 and 2020

12029 2020 -
Finan_t_:lal assetsat’ yearend - o
'.Cash and cash equivatents- $. 1,72294r § 1,4001153.
-Accountsreceivable: : *4,781,836; 1,201;132
Due from related party 55.138. 59067
* Notes recewable -2,357: 2,357
*Cash escrow:and’ résgrve funds: __-A.474, 741~ ; BOQ 897
Tolakfinandial sseté: 5033813 . -3472,606
Les$ arvioiints not avaulable to b used
wﬂhin one year
‘ue from refated party {55,138), *(59,067)
Notes receivable . {2.357): (2, 357)
Reserve funds. (1,471 741) 4809 89?).,
’l’c‘ft‘afé'rﬁc')uhts not’éx’railébl'é withinone year . _.(_--1_:,52_9‘,:.339-), . . B71,321)
Flnancial asgets: avallable {0 meet general, e Y
expenditures overfhe:fAext-twelvé months $.:3:504 ST W :

The*Organizauon has a goal to maintain unrestricted cash or ‘hand 'toimest; 30
daiys.of norMal . operatlng expenditures which- are; on. .average. apprommately

$1..559 000, -and: $1:215,000- at. May 31, 2021 and 12020; respectlvely The:
Orgamzanon has a $250 000 ling.of credit: avallable to meetrcash flow ngeds..

. NOTE'15: PAYCHECK PROTEGTION PROGRAM.

© ¢ T 4n:Aprii. 2020, tHe Orgatiization recelved loap- proceeds m- the amount of+$439 070:
undef: thie Paycheck Protéaction’ Program':(PPP). The. PPP, is establishied as: ‘part of
the Coronavirus -Aid, Relief: and Economlc Securlty Act {CARES Act) if tha
?0rgan|zat|on ‘digt not‘meet the loan criteria; the. unforglven portion: of the PPP Ioan Is-
-payable over five yedrs at an Interest rete; -of 1%. with .a. deferral of. payments fdr the
first: ten months Ths. Organizalton has used the.proceéeds; for purposes conSIstent
WIth the PPPand thé RPP dan ‘has beenforgiven in full. Theraforq. forgwaness of
the Joan totallng $439 070 has: been récognized on the Consolidatéd, Stalement of*
Actlvltles forthe year ended May 31 2021.. .



NéTES 1) CGNSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31 2021 AND 2020-

NOTE 16’ ECONOMIC INJURY_DISASTER LOAN

’ ;‘Dunng rJune 2020 'the Organization, received an ECOﬂOﬂ'IIC Injury Dtsaster-Loen,
;(EIDL) from the: Small Busiriess Adm:mstratron with proceeds In the .amount df,
$160; 000:, The, EIDL is payable over 30 years ‘at.ari ‘interest-fats. of 2. 75% Wit &
‘defenal of: paymmts “for: ane-year from the! date of the hote, lnstallmenls‘ ‘I ncluding .
pnnmpal and Interest. of .$641 . monthly begm i1} June 2021 The batance of
pnnclpal and lnterest will be: payable in- May 2050 The Ioan Is secured by‘the
‘Small Busingss. Adm!nlstratlon ;

The séhedured-’ma'tdﬁiiés'-gr the,EIDL as, o_f.M,sym_ . 2021°were s folloiws: |

‘Year: Endmg
'May 31" Amount’
“9022” ' .3.20%
2023 | 3,585
2024 . - 3,685
2035, 3788
. 2026" 3,803

Thereaﬁer . — 131,848

a . —

'NOTEAT" nRECLASSIFlCATION
Certain* amounts and dccounts ‘fiomt the ,pnor year’s financiai statements were
rectassll‘ ed,to enhance oomparablllty with the curiernit year’s ﬂnancuel statements

NOTE 18 OTHEREVENTS «
The Impact ‘ofthe nbvel ‘Torénavirys. (COVID 19) ang rneasures to.prevent ns
spread are. affectmg ‘the' Organczatlon §- operatrens The sugnrf cance of the; impact of
fhese dlsmptrons Includmg the extent of their adverse impact on the Gtgantzahon S
ﬁnanclal operational results; will be sdictated By the: Iength ~of dime- that ‘such
d:sruptlons ‘continue. and in" tum will depend -on the: currently unknowable durat:on
‘of -the' COVtD-‘tQ pandemlc and the, |mpact of. gevemmental regulatrons that. mlght
‘be. lmposed ih.response to. the pandemic;. The' Orgamzatron § buslness :could also
‘be- impacted $Should the disniptions. from CQVID-19 lead, to. changes in consumer
=behavnor COVID 19 also makes tt more challeng‘tng for management (L eshmete

i



'NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31,2021 AND 2020

P :
‘NOTE19 . SUBSEQUENT ‘EVENTS
: i} Subsequent ‘eveénts.aré events\or fransactions: ‘that. ocear after thé. statement ofr.

ﬁnancial posntron date ‘bt before fi nancrat statements are; avallabte 1o be Issued )
Recbgnlzed subsequent évents aré events.or'transactions that: prov1de addrtronal
evrdence about condltrons that existed at the slatement‘of ﬂnanclal position date,
includlng the estlmates mherent in‘the. 'process ‘of preparing fi nanclal statements'
-Nenrecogm;ed subsequent -gvents . .are "gveints: ‘that prowde evrdence about
condmons that-did not exist. at" the. statement of- ﬁnancnat poSHgH: date biit ‘afose;
after 'that daté.c :Managgément has avaluated subsequent evenls” thrOugh October-
22 2021 the: date the fi nancral Statéments. were avallable to-be: issued:

31,
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NOTE %

‘NOTES
NOTE 4,

NOTE'S.

'NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF. EXPENDITURES OF. FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED, MAY-31, 2021

IBASIS OF PRESENTATION
The ,accompanying schedule of expendltures of- Federal Awards (the Schedule)

inciudes: {h: federal -award actiwty of Southwestem Commumty Servrces Inc
under pmgrams of the federal govemment for-the year ‘endéd. May 31, 2021 The;
Infonnation in, this. Scheduie is presented in:dccordance ‘'with'the. reqmrements of
Tillg -2\, S .Code of -Federal Regulatuons ‘Pan 200 Uniforii Admimstrattve
Requrremenls, Cost Principies and AUCM Requiremeni‘s “for Federal’ Awards
(Uniform Guidance) Because the.-Schedule presents. only a selected portion-of
the operatlons of. Southwestem Cemrnunity Servzces. Inc., it i noi intended tor .
and:does not present the financuai positnon changes .in net. assets BF cash flows .

of the Organlzation

'SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING. POLICIES
Expend:tures ‘reporied .on the-Schedule .are.réported’ on the accruat basis of

-acoountlng :Siich expenditures are recognized following - the. cost pnnciples

-contained in thg Uniform Guidance wherem certain types of: expendttures are:niot
ailowable or-are. Irmited as to- relmbursemenh

INDIRECT-COST.RATE
‘Southwesterd-Community :Sérvices, Inc; has elected riot fo.usé the ten: percent,
de minimis: lndtrect cost rate allowed under the Uniform- Gusdancs

FOOD DONATION.
Nonrnonetary ass:stance is Teporfed in: the ‘Schedule- at the faur value of the
Gommioditigs received and disbursed

SUBRECIPIENTS

‘Southwestern: Commumty Senvices, Jnc. had.no subreclpients for the yeer ended ‘
May- 31 2021

AT
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lNDEPENDENT}AUDITGRS’ REPORT.ON: INTERNAL CONTROL-

OVER FlNANCIAL* REPORTING: ANDON'COM PLIANGEAND OTHER MATTERS
: BASED-ON-AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL, STATEMENTS PERFORMED
‘IN AGCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENTAUDITING_S TANDARDS'

Tothe Board of Dlrectorslof
' SouthWestem Community Services, Inc.
'Keene 'New Hampshlre

: We have audr}ed ‘infaccofdance wlth the audttlng standards‘genera!ly accepted in.the Unlted
-Statas of -Arerica and, the -standards applrcable to ‘financial.audits contalhed., in- Gover‘nment
Auditinig"Standards isSued’ 'by-thé-Comptroller Gendral of:the: Unitéd States; fhe ‘consolidated,
financial: statemeht‘s of Southwesterm Community Servlces,-lnc (a New. Hampshirg, nonprot' it
colporatlon) and! related- companies which rcomprlse the consohdated statement of- finanéiat’
posutien as-of: May 31, 2021 and the, related consolldated statements of actlvltres;‘;functlonal
-expenses and cash’ ftows for:the. year then ended -and thé 1re|ated notes: to:the: consolldated)

jﬁnanctal statements and have. issued‘our report] thereon dated Gotober 22, 2021

ifntérnal Co Contrcﬂpver Flnanclal IReportmg
In planning and . performtng our-audit-of the- ccnsohdated financial statements we: constdered'
Southwestern Community' 'Sengices lae!'s, Intemal control over financial reportmg (Inter.rjal
controt) to determfne*the aud:t procedufee that. .are. approprtate ifethe circumstences forthe,
(purpose of expressing our’ opinion on the «onsolidated” [ nancual slatements, but»not for the
purpose :of - expreselng ar eptnton ol the eﬁectlveness of. Southwestern Cemmuntty Servlces.
" Inc:'s: Internal vcontrol .Accofdingly, ‘wé ‘do -hot; &Xpress. an. ‘opinién on the eft’ectrveness of
Southwestern Communlty Services {hc 's tntemal control

"A def clency in- intemal contml exists when the desugn or operation. of a control dods not: Aliow
.management or emptoyees ini. the normal. course of: performlng thelr asslgned functlons 0.
prevent,..or detect and correct,, misstatements 'on atimely- basrs A matarigliweakness:: is., a
: deﬂcrency. or.combination of deficienclés, in Intemal. contro, such that there’ls a reasonabte
mess1btluty thet & material Misstatement of the entlty's oonsoludated finangial statements will nct
rbe prevehted ot detected -and corrected oh a tlmely basis, A stgnlt‘ canit’ deﬁctency i a
deﬁc;ency. ora: oombtnation of deficiericies,, In ‘ipterial cofitrol. that isJess Severe: than' &+
umaterial weakness yet’importent enough to-merit attentlcn by those charged wﬂhtgovernance-



¢

Our oe'rtslderatlon o( the -intetnal oontrol was for the. limited purpgse- descnbed .tn the ﬂrst
paragraph of: thls-sectron. and"was not designed. to |dent|fy all: deﬁcrenmes in mternat controt
that :mlght be smetenel weaknesses o srgnlﬁcant deficiencies. Gtven these’ Itmttatlons dunng]
ipur; audnt ‘We' did not ldentrfy any deﬂmenctes In mtemal controt that'we constder to’ be® matenal
weaknesses However rnaterial weaknesses may exust that have not been tdentiﬂed

ICOmgtlance and Other, Matters
" As: pait of obtairing. reasonabte assurangé about whether Southwestem Commumty Servuces

MO

Iné's-con'solidated financial statenienits.are free-of material misstaterent, we:performed tests.
‘of its oomptrance wlth certgtn provisions of laws,, regutetions contracts, :and grant- agreements
=noncompliance ‘with -which ¢ould have a. difect-and matérial effect on: the determtnatxon of
conso!ldated financial statement amounts HoweVer provrding an; oplmon on oomp[tance with
thosa. provisions was: ot an objective ofGur: sudit;dnd accordingly, we do hot axpress. such.an
oplnion The results of our tests disclosed 'go Instances of noncomphance or- other matters that
‘are. requtred to be re_ported;under Government Audmng Standards

"'fhe purpose of thls report is solely to. describe the scope of our testmg of intemal control :and-

,oomphance and the: results’ ef that testung and not:to provide.an, opmlon on the ‘effectivengss of -
lthe Organlzatlon s Internal centrol .or on-compliance’. This report i5:an‘integral part | of an; audlt
performed in acoordanoe with Government Audrtmg Standards in 'eonstdenng- the

......

‘Ongamzatlon § intemal controt anhd compliance. Accordmgly. this commumcatron 8. not suttable
for any, athier purpose

LR

.3:'9\
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i ”INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON.COMPLIANCE:
- (FOR'EACH ,MAJOR. PROGRAM AND.ON' INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER COMI’LIANCE REQUIRED BY. THE UNIFQRM GUIDANCE

v s owm . PR ——————

To the ‘Board-of Dlrectors of*
~Southwestem Community Services Inc
Keene, tNew Hampshfre

R rt.on Coi 'lrance.for Each Major Federal Pro ratn .

‘We: "have. audited” Southwestem’'Gommunity- Services, Inc's. (& New Hampshlre nonprof't
corporation). comiplidrice.-with. the: types ‘of ;compliance ‘requirements descibed .in ‘the. ‘OMB:
Compﬂance Supp!ement that- could have a. direct and, materal effect on each of Southwestern
LCommjunity . Services,. nc's: ‘major federal programs: for the yeer'ende,d May 31, :2021.

~Souttiwasterr Communit\f Services, Inc’s major federal programs are Iaenlified inthe' i summary of
auditors' results saction- of the eccompanyng schedulé: ofﬁndrngs and ql]estroned costs.,

onsibility.

aniagément's Resj
nagement is responsible for, comp_llerrce with-the federal ;Statutes;: requlatror’té, ,and the terms

and eondltlons ef its: fegeral awards apphcable to its federal programs.

.Auditors’ Respcnslbm :

Our regponsrbilrty IS 10 ¢ express an oplnron'on compllance for each of Southwestem Cemmun'itw
*Setvices;. Inc's: avajor fedaral programs !based. on.our, udit of the types of ‘compllance
requlrements referred - to .gbove. We. condlicted - our .audit- of -compllance, in : accordance. with.
audlting standards gengrilly, accepted in the:United.States of America’ the:standards-applicable {6
fingriclal _agdlte:conta?ned in Government:Auditing Standards, |ssued by the Gomptrolﬂar Genéral
.of "the United States;” a_r_rc_l‘ Titier.2 U.S- .Code of Federer' -Regulations--Part: 200, Uniform-
Administrative Reqwrements, Cost Princip!es ahd Audit Requrrements for Federal Awards
{Uniform:Guidance): Those' standards: and the: Uniform, Guidance: require that:we; plan and perform,
thé-“audit-to obtain_reasonable -assurance. about ‘whether noncompliance with_ the" types-.of
compllance 'requrréments reférréd. to.above that:could have e direct-and material'effect ona major’
federal.. program “occurred. An audrt Includes examrning, on @ test basis, evldeqce abolit.
'Southwestem Community . Services Inc's: compllance with those: requirements and” performlng :

Sueh ‘other pmcedures aswe ccnsldened necessary in the circumstances:*

We belleve that.our audnt prov‘ides a reasoneble basls for.our: eplnlon en cbm llence, for-eegh.
“malor. federat . program; Howaever, -our ‘audlf-«does. not provide a. legel efermination: of
Sou‘lhwestem Commuhity Services, Inc.‘s compliance.

. n'éur oplnlon, Southwastem CgmmUnﬂy Services, Int. comp!led in.all materlal res ects. with the :

complten'ce requlremente referred to-above- that could.have a direct and matenal effect on. each of
rils major federel programs ot th. year.ended May-31, 2021h _ :

40



oit on: ihtemal Control Over Compliance. . PN o )
Management- of .Southwestem- Commuriity: Services, Inc. 15 responsitile for' establishing .and
maintalning: effecfive intemal:contro) over.compliance with-the types ‘of compliance-requirements.
“referred .10 above: “Im_planning «&nd. .performing’ ouf raudit. .of compliance; we: -considéred:
- Southwesten Community: Sefvices; “inc’’s .interha! control over .compliance with the ‘types.of”
réquirements. that could have’ & direct .and material effect :.on each major federal pragram- to:
detefrming the auditing procedures that dre appropriate.in the-clicumstances for the. pliipose of
“expressing‘an opinion:on_compliance for each major féderal program and: to'test:and report-on .
tintarnal contrel dver ‘campliance in-accordance with the-Uniform Guidance; but notfor the: purpose.
ofiéxpressing.an.opinioh’on the effectivenéss ofintemal control over-compliance:. Accordingly, We:
.do- ot express”an “opinion on-the ‘effectiveness of :Southwéstermn Commuriity Sérvices, Inc.'s’
Intemal control over complisnce. C o

A ft'.i,ef.l.déﬁtifil'n' intéffial ontfol Over.compliance exists-when the.design of -Gperatisn of e Contiot
-over compliance.does ot :allow. management or employées, in the-normal ‘course ‘of performing
their . assigned functions, to ‘prevent, .or détect dand' correct,. noncompliance: 'wilh -a “type--of

<complianice: réquirament of 4*federal ‘program ona timely -basis; A Mmaterial weakness'in intemnal
:control oveér complidnce, is- adefi¢iency, of .combination of deficiencies in' interral- coritrol .over
-compliarice, such that-there is a redsonable possibility ‘that-material honcompliance: with. a type of
compliance tequirerent.of a federal programwill not-bg.preventéd; ordétacted and corrected, on
atimely ‘basis. A’ significant déficiency Irintémal .control -over compliance 'is-a deficiency,or &
combination” of deficiencies,. i ‘intemal control. Gver ‘comipliance with '@ type of complignce

requlrement of a.federal.program that ly.less severe than a material weaknéssin. intemal control
over.complidnce, yet important endugh to-mierit attention. by those'charged. with'igavemance..”

Quit:éonisidération of.itérmal control over-Gompliarice,was, for the liriited purpose deseribed inj.ihe.‘_: ;
first iparagraphi. of ‘this-séctlon .and ‘was-not designed to id éntify ‘all déficiencles in-internat-contral

oyer-compliance that might be-material weaknesses of significarit deficiencjes.'We. did :not idefitify-

-any-deficlencies:in internal control over.compliance that'we consider to.be-matefial weakngsses:

. *However, material weakngsses mayexist that were not identified:

“The purpose ethis feportion intéinal Gontrol over compliance.is solefy to déserbe the Scopeé! of
Our- testing-of internal - control .over-compliance ‘and-the results of that testing, baged-gn. the.
féquirements -of ‘the.*Uniform :Guidanice. Accordingly, ‘this. réport is not suitable;for -afy- other;
PUrROSE: : . ' - -

OC‘_t'tj,be_rrézl:_-szZi' . )
Wollsboro:Nev Haisire

- ' 41



SCHEDULEOF FINDINGS 'AND QUESTIONED COSTS
'FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31,2021 .

'SUMMARY. OF AUDITORS RESULTS

1: The audlto “report éxprésses-an unmgdified optn:on ‘on. whether the. consohdated ﬁnanual .

statements of Southweéstéem, Communlty ‘Services, In¢:. and related companies "werg
prepared in acoordance wtth GAAP.

2. No -srgnrﬁcant deﬂctencles disclosed during the audit -of ‘the: consolidated financial

s-_:l

- l-_ﬁ.

"_u'u.

a."qg,

:gtatements* are’ reported in the !ndependent Auditors’ ‘Repoit on lntemet Control 'Over-.
Financial Reporting -and on.Compliance ‘and Other.Matters,Based on. an-Audil ‘of- -Financial
Sletements Performed rn Acoordance with ‘Gavernment Auditirig Stendards No matenat.

No- lnstances of noncomptlance material -to the consolndated financial statements of
Southwesterm Cormmunity Servicés; In¢. and rélated \companres which would:be required
1o be raported: In -atcordance. wnth Gavarnment Audrtrng ‘Standards: were' dlsctosed dunng .
the: audit '
No- «stgniﬂcant deficlencies in intemal : coritidl over major federal award programs. are .
reparted.in the Independent Auditors' Report on.Complisnce for:Each; Major ngrem ‘and'
-on- Internal . Control Qver Complrance Required by the Uniform- Gurdance ‘No material
weaknesses are reported

The audltors report oh comptiance for the. major federal: award programs for. Southwesterm
-.Communlty Serwoes In¢. -expresses an-uniiodified apiaion' an’all major federal. programs '

'There weié fio -atdit ﬂndmgs that iare required to be reported in accordance wlth 2 CFR'
-section 200 51 6(a) ‘

7. The | progiams: tested 86 major: programs ‘were;'U.S. Deparment of Heallh and Human

A

\cpa lﬁ.!

" .Sarvices; Low-tnoome Home-Energy Assmtance 93 568, Community. Services Block Grant;.

-93.569, .‘and Head Start, 93.600; and. U.S: Department of Treasury; Coronawrus Reltef
Fund:, 211 019, and'Emergency Rental Assistance Program,-21,023;

% 'The l_hgeehold-_for-disthgulshtng, Type A and B-pro_g,ra_ms was $750.0@dﬁ;'

- Sethwastem Commurity Sefvices, Inc. was determiined to be-a low-risk auditee,

. FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT

None:.

(FINDINGS AND-QUESTIONED COST5- MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS AUDIT

None:



SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS -
2 {FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31,2021 -

—_— -

Thirewre-no fifidings:or.quesiionad costs:that Were.required-io.be repaited:in the Schieduie

of:Findings-and Questioned Costs for the year ehded May 31; 2020.
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Southwestern Community Services, Inc.

-

Board of Directors - 202| Compeosition

- CONSTITUENT
SECTOR

CHESHIRE COUNTY SULLIVAN COUNTY
Mary Lou Huffling - '
Ron Nason - Fall-Mountain Emergency Food
SCS Tenant Shelf -

Brianna Trombl

- Had Start Policy Council

Parent Representative

Alstead Friendly Meals

Anne Beattio- ‘ ]
Newport Service Organization

PRIVATE
SECTOR

Kevin Watterson, Chair
Clarke Companies (retired)

Dominic Perkins
Savings Bank of Walpole

_ River Valley Community Coliege

David Edkins
Town of Walpole

Kerry Belknap Morris, M.Ed,
Early Childhood Education

PusLiC
SECTOR

]éy Kahn
State Senator, District 10

Beth Fox
Assistant City Manager/
Human Resources Director

" City of Keene

l Derek Ferland

Suflivan County Ma_'nage‘r _

Open




KEY ADMINISTRATIVE PERSONNEL.

NH Office of Strategic Intitiatives

Erogram‘Name:.WAP PY20

Agency Name: Southwestern Community Services, Inc.

"h"“fh“’f P T i R g T "f:a‘“ R WA | e eI g
| Annual Salary 0_1 R . Percentage of
. Adminlstrative ! -Salary Paid By
Name & Title Key Admmlstrauvo Personncl Personnol Contract .
e — ————— R
John-A. Manning, Chief Executive Officer $107, 016 g 0.00% S S
Beth Daniels, Chief Operaling Officer 565000 ) - 10.00% ;
Gabriel Leonard, Energy Conservation Manager . |. $45,760 | 70.00%
e i = 5 e e o o e ] . "E" b"s"'» %
e e e R e = e . e e I P wiy l‘\u .L"S'b )m 1'
<t nr\\;.w- ‘oh
————— e ey e P Rt s e ke 3 %1 0 3 b e B S - ._’.n. - o [ fp— »{‘_ Y"J-l’ ‘hl!
|
' ) [ i




Ediucation

Organizations

John A.:Manning

1Over 30 years of experience with non-profit. organizations. as both an
outside auditor and presenily Chief Financial.Officer,of a'large
communily action agency.

2014 : Southwostarn Community Services Inc,
Keene, NH |

" Chiet. E:ocuthro Officer

Rospongib\d foroverall uperviiion, managemenL mon!loring and figcai
review-ol Communny Action Aqency soc:al service programs pfowding

artd Cheshire C-o:.mhes New Hampshare

1990-2014 Soulhweste_r_o'é.ommqm‘iy’fS..e'.Nices Inic.

. Keane, NH
“Chikof Financlil OMcor
Oversées: ali. fiscal fingtions for a cormunaymdim pgency providrig
aenria:s to low and moderaie- income | mduduab Progmm'hdude Head -
Sq;nu Fuef Assmanca and, mumple aﬁudaue housing pmjocm
Supewma s188.0l7, with an. agencybudgelofovers 13000000 Ay
oversees agency property _manageiment: departiment; which manage’s
over 300.unis of affordable Fousing:

1985-1995 Keehe.-Smte.cblege;' Keene. NH
‘Adjimcl'l’rdnlor

Taught ‘evening accounting chasses for their -cantinuing  education
ptogtam.

19761000 John A: Manning, ‘Kadne, NH
cmlﬂod Pubuc Accountgnl

K :'lh i

saverg] thents: mduding Head 1'and other non=profitiients.

1975-1978 ' Kostin.and Co, CPA's West-Hartford: Cl:
Stoff Accountant ‘

Perfomed 'all aspects of public, awounllng‘lor medium &iZed acicountirg
firm. Audited'iarge number ‘of privatety. heid 3Ad mn-pmm-dems

1971-1075 University of Mass,  Amnherst. Ma.
B.S. Business Administration in Accounting .

Amarican Instilute of Certiliad Public Accountants

NH Sociely of Certified Public Actcountants



Beth Daniels
Txperience.
Southwestern Community Services, Inc., Keene, NH
Chief Operating Officer 03/2016-Present
o Responsible for all day-to-day program operations of the agency
+ Supervise Program Directors, including WIC, Energy, and Housing Stabilization
¢ Ensure that all state and federal regulations are followed while those in need receive 8 smooth delivery
of service
Director of Energy and Employment Programs 10/2008 — 12/2016
.» Oversee all daily operations for Fuel Assistance, Electric Assistance, Neighbor Helping Neighbor,
‘Scnior Energy Assistance, Weatherization, HRRP, CORE, and Assurance 16 as well as the employment
programs Workplace Success, Work Expcricnce Program, and W1A.
Workforce Development Director ' 1172006 ~ 10/2008
- Supervise, dirccl, coach, and encourage staff of six within four programs .
+ Collaborale with agency slaff, community members and state contract holders to 3Chll'.VC common goals,
including agency name recognition and program success :
¢ Perform all SCS Program Director tasks inctuding PPRs and budget management
Families @ Work Employment Specialist 0372006 - 11/2006
¢ Managed a cascload of fiRy (50) clients throughout the Keene, Claremont, Concord, and Nashua arcas
o Worked closely with staff from Southwestern Commumly Services, Inc. and Southcrn New Hampshire
Services
o Gained a strong working knowledge of all SCS programs for rcferral purposes

. Second Start, Concord, NH '
Career Development Specialist 11/2004 - 03/2006
« Facilitated daily job-readiness classes and skill-building cxercises
» Assisted participants with barrier fesolution and the job search process
+ Maintained participant records and completed reporting requirements
». Received ongoing training in teaching techniques and leaming styles

. Nina’s Family Daycare, Swanzey, NH . 1072003 - 11/2004
Daycare Provider - :

» Responsible for meal planning, payment records, supplies, and activities . -

.+ Acquired CPR & First Aid certification '

Southwestern Commaunity Services, Inc., Keene, NH
Case Manager, Homeless Services 09/2002 - 10/2003
« Responsible for all daily operations of housing program, rules, and regulations
e Completed weekly and monthly progress reports
¢ Coordinated house meetings, workshops, casc conferences, and life skills classes
Case Manager, Welfare-to=Work - 05/2000 - 09/2002
. Provided job placement and retention services for caseload of forty (40) clicnts
« Gained working knowledge of Department of Health & Human Services, immigration & Naturalization
Services, community agencics, and SCS



Grant Writing Workshop
Cheshire County

Nonviolent Crisls-Intervention
Crisis Prevention Institule, Inc.

Leadership Training
Tad Dwyer Consulting

" Criticism & Discipline Skills for Managers
CareerTrack

How to Supervise People
CareerTrack

Carcer Development Facilitator Training
National Career Development Association
120-hour NCDA training

Certified Workforce Development Specialist’
National Association of Workforce Development Professionals

Infection Control & Bloodborme Pathogéns
Home Health Care

Bachelor of Arts in Human Servicesl
Franklin Pierce College
Graduated cum laude

.References Available

2016-2017

0572012
2012
2010-2011
11/2007
11/2007

09/2005

06/2005
0172003

0572002



Gabriel-Leonard

o,

© Proféssional Summary

Strong client servicas, employee management, organizational, and problem solvmg skills in a fast-paced
environment, seeking employmenl! with a company of shared standards and values.

. Employment History
All Seasons Construction Corp. (Springfield, VT) Assistant Project Manager Nov2015- Present

. Responmble for supporting Project Manager in the planning, management direction, pro;ect completion,
client satisfaction, and financial outcome of assigned construction projects.

Create estimates wilhin Sage project management software:

Supports the Project Manager functions such as monthly forecasts, estumaimg. and budgetmg

Assists in ensuring that all documentation meets intemal standards, procedures and specifications.
Ensures good, transparent and effective reporting and documentation.

Delivers all documents in a timely manner'so that progress can be fully communicated.
Communicates with Site Manager for sile project documentations.

Responsible for verifying blueprints and construction process on multiple build phases.

New Hampshire Employment Se_scurity (Claremont, NH} DVOP Employment Specialist  Jan2015-Nov2015

 Disabled Veterans' Outreach Program (DVOP) Specialist facilitated warkforce services for veterans,

others eligible and employers.
s Provided specialized workforce services Ior velerans, especially veterans with barrlers to employment,
-i.e., job development services for veterans, refer veterans to employmentitraining opportunilies, provide
counselmgfgundance and assist veterans with other workforce services (resume assistance, labor
.market information, job search workshops, one-stop carear center orientation, etc.).

HURLEY OFFICE SOLUTIONS (Randolph, VT) Project Manager ' - Nov 2008-Sep2014

+ Provided site supervision on a diverse range of commercial oﬁ' ice inslallation pro;ecls Tailored custom

solutions to customer needs.
» Managed, hired and trained a team of seven employees. Created and unplemented a customer service

- standard for the organization.
« Deaveloped relationships with third parly sales representatives to sefl Hurley Office Solutions' sarvices.

« Negotiated bids, responded to RFPs and successiully closed conlracts.
+ Analyzed the business and marketplace and crealed a strategic plan for the organization lhat included
new marketing, human resources, job site and decumentation plans.

BASIC PSA (Johnstown, PA/ Kennebunk, ME) Snubber Removal & Relnstallation Technician
VC Summer Nuclear Power Station Ocl 2012 - Nov 2012
Susquehanna Nuclear Power Station Mar 2012 - Apr 2012

« Evalualed, removed & reinstalled nuclear snubbers, mechanical and hydraulic shock absorbers, to
prevent unwanted activity during scheduled power outages paying close attention lo all safety protocols
and procedures.

IBZ CONTRACTING (Spring Valley, NY) Heavy Equipment Operator Jul 2008 - Aug 2009
» Managed heavy equipment for a walerfront resloration and worked closely with EPA inspectors and

projeci engineers. .

FULLTIME MANAGEMENT (New York, NY) Property Manager Jan 2008 - May 2008



« Managed multiple residential properties, wilh responsibilities including general upkeep, small repairs
and tenant relalions.

FINESTKIND HANDYCRAFTSMEN (Kitsap County, WA) Proprietor Dec 2004 - Jan 2007

+ Coordinated contracts for construction, successfully. managed crew and contracts lo ensure timely and
safisfactory completion of projects.

« Provided services including finish carpentry masonry, drywall, interior / exterior palnting residential
"electrical and plumbing, landscaping, roofing, and decking. .

UNITED STATES NAVY (Bremerton, WA & San Diego, CA) . Nov 2002 - Dec 2007
USS John C Stennis, CVN 74, Kilsap Navy Base & Coronado Navy Base .

Aviation Ordnance Specialist Supervisor - Nov 2004 - Dec 2007
Aviation Ordnance Specialist Nov 2002 - Nov 2004

» Instructed, supervised and evaluated the performance of 60 personnel and oversaw $1 billion plus of
highty sensitive weapons and navy specific heavy equipment.

'+ Communicated effectlvely in diverse and hostile environmenis, both with personnel and upper
management under siressful conditions.

Education

GRANITE STATE COLLEGE (Cohcord, NH) B.S. Businass Managemenl, GPA 3.72 magna cum laude 2014
CPR CERTIFIED NATIONAL HEART ASSOCIATION . 2014
ASSOCIATED TRAINI'NG SERVICES (Portsmouth, NH) Heavy Equipment Operation School 2008

'NAVY LEADERSHIP PROGRAM (USS John C Stennis, CVN 74) 2004



